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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, great, we

          3  are going to start again.  I am Christine Quinn.  I

          4  am Chair of the City Council's Health Committee.  I

          5  am joined today by Council Member Jim Gennaro, who

          6  is the author of a number of the bills that we will

          7  be hearing today, and also the Chair of our

          8  Environmental Protection Committee.

          9                 We will be joined throughout the

         10  course of the hearing by other Council members.

         11  There is a number of hearings going on, which is why

         12  we are in the glamorous and luxurious 250 Broadway,

         13  instead of City Hall.  And I apologize for the

         14  tightness on seats, but there is a lot of interest

         15  in this issue, which is a great thing.

         16                 So, we are here today, for today's

         17  hearing is on four pieces of legislation.  Three of

         18  them which relate to pesticide usage in New York

         19  City.

         20                 The fourth is a resolution,

         21  completely unrelated to pesticides, Resolution No.

         22  660, introduced by the Majority Leader Joel Rivera.

         23  It is a resolution to honor the skills and

         24  tremendous work of the medical staff at Montefiore,

         25  who separated the two Siamese twins who attached at
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          2  the skull.  And we will be voting on that later on

          3  when we have a quorum.  There is going to be a

          4  ceremony in the Bronx to honor those doctors, so we

          5  wanted to make sure we got the Resolution passed

          6  before that hits the timing.

          7                 Then we are back to pesticides.  We

          8  are hearing two introductions today, Intro. 328 and

          9  Intro. 329, Intro. 328, both legislation introduced

         10  by Council Member Gennaro, is a local law, which

         11  would have New York City opt into the Pesticide

         12  Neighborhood Notification Law passed in New York

         13  State in 2003. And we would, if when opted in, we

         14  would be required to adopt all the provisions

         15  specified in that State Law and we would be

         16  following other localities, Suffolk, Nassau,

         17  Westchester, Albany, Rockland, Tomkins, and Erie

         18  County.

         19                 I just want to say I know some

         20  concern has been raised by the Administration that

         21  the drafting of the bill may not track closely

         22  enough with the State definitions.  And obviously,

         23  any technical problems like that, we would obviously

         24  would want to fix and address, because we have to be

         25  in sync with the State Law in this.  So, we are
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          2  happy to meet with folks after this hearing, to

          3  tighten up any, if there is any technical errors in

          4  the drafting.  You know, and this law would require

          5  that 48 hours prior to any commercial lawn

          6  applications of a pesticide, that the company making

          7  that application supply written notice to the

          8  premises abutting the property that are going to

          9  have the pesticide application.  And they think,

         10  obviously, the intent and hope there is that people

         11  who are in close proximity to this application would

         12  be notified, so that they could take whatever

         13  precautions they deemed necessary.

         14                 Intro. 329 would phase out the use of

         15  what we are calling the most dangerous pesticides by

         16  City agencies.  And the bill would prohibit City

         17  agencies and contractors from fulfilling a City

         18  Contract.  They could not use pesticides, classified

         19  toxicity category one, by the EPA.  And then in a

         20  later time period in the bill, we would move on to

         21  prohibiting the use of toxicity category two.

         22                 Then we are also hearing Resolution

         23  68-A, which was introduced by myself, and Council

         24  Member McMahon, and others. Resolution 68-A is

         25  urging the State Senate to pass a bill the State
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          2  Assembly has passed, which is the State Urban

          3  Pesticide Board Legislation.

          4                 Obviously the goal of these pieces of

          5  legislation, is to try to:

          6                 One, better understand what amounts

          7  of pesticide we are or are not using in this City.

          8                 And two, since I think it is well

          9  agreed on that there can be adverse effects when

         10  there is excessive use of pesticides, to try to

         11  reduce the amount of pesticide use in the City.

         12  Because I know when I first started discussing this

         13  issue with Council Member Gennaro, a year or two

         14  ago, I was really shocked.  If you had asked me does

         15  New York City use more pesticides than the

         16  agricultural parts of New York State, I would say

         17  that is ridiculous, what are you crazy, of course

         18  the upstate farmers use a lot more pesticides than

         19  we do.  You know, they must be beating us hands

         20  down.  Well, that is not the case as it relates to

         21  many counties throughout the State.  In fact, New

         22  York City is in many cases using far more

         23  pesticides, and far harsher, so-to-speak, pesticides

         24  than some of our farming neighbors to the north.

         25  And we hope today is the beginning of a dialogue,
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          2  which will really get that situation under control.

          3                 We want to, and I think there is good

          4  timing with this hearing, and a hearing we are

          5  having next week, which is Monday, which is an

          6  oversight hearing and looking at some legislation

          7  regarding control of pests and rodents in the City.

          8  And obviously, we are mindful with the legislation

          9  we are hearing today, that although we are not for

         10  the most part, farmers in New York City, we do have

         11  unique and challenging pest- related problems of our

         12  own.

         13                 And as we hear these legislations we

         14  will bear that in mind, and want to make sure that

         15  we do not do anything, which would in anyway overly

         16  tie the hands of the City as it tries to eliminate,

         17  and particularly, some of the neighborhoods in our

         18  City, which are most plagued by rat and rodent

         19  problems. So, if there are issues related to that,

         20  that come up today, we obviously will have the

         21  ability to follow- up with them on Monday.

         22                 I think there is absolutely a way to

         23  strike a balance of being able to get rid of

         24  unwanted pests that are really, plaguing some

         25  neighborhoods.  And as we saw by the report
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          2  recently, released by DOH, progress is being made

          3  there, significantly in some neighborhoods.  But

          4  that there is a way to balance that with making sure

          5  we are protecting people's health and our

          6  environment by not overly using pesticides.

          7                 And I want to say that, as we were

          8  preparing for this hearing, also encouraged by when,

          9  I could say it was me, you could think I am very

         10  smart and very thorough, you probably would not by

         11  it, when my staff was researching this, Chris

         12  Winward and found that actually, when Mayor

         13  Bloomberg was running for office on his

         14  mikeformayor.com web page, he had some very, I

         15  think, encouraging statements as it relates to our

         16  goals today, which was, you know, the then

         17  candidate, now Mayor, on his web page said, "we use

         18  more pesticides in New York City than our upstate

         19  agricultural neighbors.  The City government should

         20  take the first step to analyze government use of

         21  pesticides in our schools, offices, and hospitals,

         22  and seek alternative methods of rodent and insect

         23  control."  So I think, with that, we are all

         24  certainly driving towards the same goal today, and

         25  look forward to the hearing, and all of the follow-
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          2  up to try to, hopefully, move as soon as possible to

          3  a vote on the Resolution and the Introductions.

          4                 And with that said I want to turn the

          5  mic over to the Chair of our Environmental

          6  Protection Committee, who really deserves all of the

          7  credit for getting us here today on these bills and

          8  on this very important issue.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         10  thank you Chairperson Quinn.  Thank you for your

         11  great stewardship of this Committee and all of the

         12  battles that you take on, on behalf of the public

         13  health of New York City.  I was proud to work, I

         14  guess, with you and for you, when I was a staff

         15  member for the City Council, and I am very proud to

         16  be working with you as a colleague, and to do what,

         17  I guess you and I both think, is very, very

         18  important legislation.  And I thank you so much for

         19  your stewardship, and of course, we would not be

         20  here today without Chris having the insight to back

         21  these bills, and to call them for a hearing.  There

         22  are many issues that she could focus on, but she is

         23  focusing on this, and we all must be very, very

         24  grateful for that.

         25                 And in all this talk about
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          2  agriculture and you may not know, but in my

          3  district, the 24th District, we have a working farm.

          4    We have got John Bowne High School has an

          5  agricultural program, and the farm is sort of tucked

          6  in right behind, you have got Queens College, and

          7  CUNY Law School, and John Bowne High School, and it

          8  is right where those three properties meet.  So we

          9  have a working farm and they do not use pesticides

         10  there.  And kids come from all over the City, to

         11  come to my district to learn how to farm.  I bet you

         12  did not know that.

         13                 Anyway, Good morning.  My name is Jim

         14  Gennaro, I am Chair of the Environmental Protection

         15  Committee, as Chris had said, and I just want to

         16  speak a little bit about these bills. Of course, we

         17  have already heard from Chris, in some detail on

         18  them.  But I will just go through them.

         19                 Intro. 328, is that Neighbor

         20  Notification Bill. In my mind, this is as much about

         21  the public's right to know, as it is about

         22  pesticides.  The bill creates a public right to know

         23  by requiring that people who live near certain

         24  pesticides applications, and that would not be near

         25  the farm in my district because they do not use
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          2  them, who live near certain pesticides applications.

          3    In other words, those most likely to be exposed

          4  to, and impacted by, pesticides receive reasonable,

          5  common sense notification of these applications.

          6                 Through such notification, the bill

          7  empowers people to make their own decisions about

          8  how best to manage the exposure of their children,

          9  their families, to these pesticides. You know, we

         10  have all seen that somebody is spraying pesticides

         11  next door.  You have got the kids sandbox right next

         12  door.  You got the pool, which may not be covered.

         13  You have got laundry hanging out on the line.  You

         14  have got the kids play toys on the lawn.  But if

         15  people were to know that pesticides were going to be

         16  sprayed, aerially right next door, you could bet

         17  that the pool would be covered, the toys would be

         18  put away, bedroom windows closed, so that we do not

         19  get drift.  As this man has a sign that says drift,

         20  drift happens.

         21                 It seems to me that reinforcing New

         22  Yorker's right to know, and thereby, putting more

         23  decision- making ability in the hands of our

         24  citizens is a very good thing.  I also think the

         25  empowering people to minimize pesticides with their
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          2  children, their families, themselves, is also a very

          3  good thing.

          4                 That is why I think Intro. 328 is

          5  such valuable legislation.

          6                 I have been involved with

          7  environmental health throughout my entire career.

          8  One of the lessons that this involvement teaches us

          9  over and over is this:  We are much better off

         10  avoiding an environmental or health problem in the

         11  first place, then trying to undo a problem after it

         12  is created.  An ounce of prevention is worth a pound

         13  of cure, is an axiom of environmental protection.

         14                 I bring this perspective also, to

         15  Intro. 329, which is the Pesticide Reduction Bill,

         16  that Chris also spoke of. It is clear to me that the

         17  City of New York were to institutionalized a

         18  process, whereby we continue to reduce, and where

         19  possible take away, the use of pesticides, it would

         20  mean substantial, effective protection.  And I am

         21  glad to hear that the, you know, Mayor was on board

         22  with this concept as early as his campaign for Mayor

         23  in 2001.

         24                 It would mean fewer families would

         25  have to live around fewer and fewer pesticides in
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          2  their homes, their buildings, their schools, and

          3  their neighborhoods.  It would mean that workers

          4  would have increasingly fewer pesticides in their

          5  work places, and workers would have to endure less

          6  and less pesticide exposure to these toxic chemicals

          7  as a part of their jobs.  And it would mean we would

          8  be putting fewer pesticides broadcast into New

          9  York's environment, its water, air, and land.

         10                 I recognize that witnesses today may

         11  critique various elements of the bill, Chris spoke

         12  briefly of that.  I welcome such constructive

         13  criticism.  That is why the Council has these

         14  hearings, to hear how the legislation can be made

         15  better, and workable, and more effective.  But,

         16  through all of this, I hope we will keep, foremost

         17  in our mind, the axiom that an ounce of prevention

         18  is worth a pound of cure.

         19                 I believe that an institutionalized

         20  process through which the City continues to reduce

         21  its unnecessary use of pesticides will provide many

         22   "ounces" of prevention, and will be worth many

         23   "pounds of cure" to New York families, workers, and

         24  environment.

         25                 So, I thank you once again,
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          2  Chairperson Quinn, for the opportunity to speak on

          3  these bills, for your gracious support of them, and

          4  for hearing them.  I would also like to thank those

          5  people from the Administration who have helped to

          6  get this hearing by providing testimony.  Laura

          7  Haight of NYPIRG, who is here, who has really been

          8  very, very active on this issue for many, many

          9  years; and she gave great guidance to us as we put

         10  these bills together; Joel Shufro of NYCOSH; Craig

         11  Wilson of the New York Lead Conservation Voters;

         12  Swati Prakash and all the good folks from WE ACT; my

         13  own Chief of Staff, Peter Washburn; my other staff

         14  member Brittany Mariotti who were very helpful in

         15  getting us here today; and all of you who care very,

         16  very deeply about this subject, to the fact that we

         17  had to put more chairs in the room, that also was a

         18  very, very good thing.  It bodes well for how

         19  important a topic this is.  So thank you all for

         20  being here, and thank you Chairperson Quinn.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  And I

         22  just want to add to Jim's thanks of the advocates

         23  who, this morning when I was meeting with the Health

         24  Committee staff, they really said that the advocates

         25  had done, you know, just yeoperson's work, helping
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          2  us get the information and pull together today's

          3  hearing.  So I just want to echo that.  And I also

          4  want to thank the Health Committee staff, Gelvina

          5  Stevenson, Chris Winward Read, Jeremy Hoffman, and

          6  Andy Wallace.  And I do not think that David had

          7  anything to do with this hearing at all, so we are

          8  just not going to thank him.  But a hearing at some

          9  point too, we will thank them for their work on this

         10  issue.

         11                 I was actually, going over stuff this

         12  morning, all the other jurisdictions and stuff, that

         13  people had reached out to.  So I just want to thank

         14  everybody for that.

         15                 And now we are going to call the

         16  first panel, which is going to be Commissioner

         17  Jessica Leighton, Assistant Commissioner for

         18  Environmental Disease Prevention, and Ed Butts, the

         19  Assistant Commissioner for Veterinary and Pest

         20  Control Services of the Department Health and Mental

         21  Hygiene.  They are also going to be joined by

         22  representatives of the Department of Parks and

         23  NYCHA, who are there to take questions.  They will

         24  not be delivering testimony, the formal testimony

         25  will be from DOH.
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          2                 You, just, guys go right over there.

          3  I think we might need one more chair for the

          4  testifiers.  Whenever you guys are ready just, go

          5  right ahead.  Just when you are testifying, or

          6  people are answering questions, if you could just

          7  identify yourself for the record before you speak.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         10  Good afternoon, Chairpersons Quinn and Gennaro, and

         11  when they arrive, members of the Committee on

         12  Health.  I am Jessica Leighton, I am the Assistant

         13  Commissioner for Environmental Disease Prevention at

         14  the New York City Department of Health and Mental

         15  Hygiene.  With me today is Dr. Edgar Butts.  He is

         16  the Assistant Commissioner of Veterinary and Pest

         17  Control Services.  We appreciate the opportunity to

         18  share our views on Intro. 328 and Intro. 329, which

         19  address the use of pesticides in New York City.

         20  Also with us today are representatives from the New

         21  York City Department of Parks, Bram Gunther, and

         22  Recreation, sorry, and the New York City Housing

         23  Authority, Brian Clarke.  These agencies are also

         24  impacted by these bills, and their representatives

         25  will be happy to respond to questions.  With me also
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          2  is Daniel Cass, who is on my staff at the Health

          3  Department.

          4                 First, I would like to address Intro.

          5  328.  As you are aware, New York State law permits

          6  local governments to opt into the State Lawn Care

          7  Pesticide Neighbor Notification Law.  It requires

          8  local governments to opt into the law as is, and

          9  leaves little latitude for local governments to

         10  fashion a local notification law.

         11                 Intro. 328 would require private

         12  applicators of lawn care pesticides, broadly

         13  defined, to provide 48- hour advanced notice to

         14  residents and occupants of buildings within 150 feet

         15  of an intended pesticide application.  It also

         16  requires those persons performing residential lawn

         17  applications treating an area of more than 100

         18  square feet, to place markers within or along the

         19  perimeter of the area where pesticides will be

         20  applied. Retail stores that sell lawn care

         21  pesticides would also be required to post notices,

         22  detailing the notification requirements associated

         23  with these products' use and the penalties for

         24  violations of these rules.

         25                 Many counties around New York State
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          2  have opted into the Lawn Care Notification Law.  Our

          3  conversations with county government staff in these

          4  counties, and a report by the State Attorney

          5  General's Office suggest that compliance is

          6  generally good.  We have also heard anecdotal

          7  reports that applicators are replacing pesticides in

          8  liquid form with granular pesticides to avoid

          9  notification requirements, perfectly permissible

         10  under the State enabling law.  Granular products are

         11  more labor intensive to apply, but carry fewer risks

         12  of accidental exposures to those who are applying

         13  the pesticides.

         14                 Under Intro. 328, the City Health

         15  Department would be responsible for enforcing the

         16  law.  The Department would have to hire or redirect

         17  at least two or three staff members to meet the

         18  oversight requirements of this bill.  Intro. 328

         19  would also require the Health Department to monitor

         20  signage in hardware stores.  We believe that the

         21  DOHMH may not be the appropriate agency to enforce

         22  this provision.

         23                 I would like to, mostly, direct my

         24  comments to Intro. 329, which addresses pesticide

         25  reduction by City agencies. We clearly share the
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          2  objective of the bill to promote the use of safe

          3  alternatives to pesticides, and we ourselves have

          4  implemented numerous efforts to achieve this

          5  objective.  I am going to be describing these as

          6  well.  However, I would like to raise some of the

          7  scientific, operational, and legal concerns that we

          8  with the City had with the bill.

          9                 Between 1998 and 2001, the last year

         10  for which the data had been analyzed, the volume of

         11  pesticides used in New York City declined by 80

         12  percent, and the weight applied has declined by 84

         13  percent.  Even still, a large amount of pesticides,

         14  as noted by the Council members, are still applied

         15  in New York City. Though we do not have data to

         16  indicate what proportion of pesticides used in New

         17  York City is applied by or on behalf of the City

         18  agencies.  We do not know how much actual exposure

         19  to pesticides occurs in this City, but the Council

         20  may be interested to know that our unique Health and

         21  Nutrition Examination Survey, will measure pesticide

         22  exposure in a representative sample of New York City

         23  adults.  And this is the first time that any such

         24  analysis has been done on a local level.

         25                 Pesticides are used in relatively
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          2  large quantities in New York City for several

          3  reasons.  According to the Health Department's

          4  Community Health Survey, one- third of households

          5  report having cockroaches, with some neighborhoods

          6  having rates greater than 50 percent.  According to

          7  the 2002 Housing and Vacancy Survey, which is

          8  conducted by the Housing Department, about 22

          9  percent of households report seeing rodents in or

         10  around their homes, and in some community districts

         11  it is 40 percent or higher.  The housing and

         12  building stock for the City is unique in the State,

         13  and dense urban living and development provide easy

         14  harborage, and food, and water sources for pests.

         15  Pesticides are useful for controlling these pest

         16  populations.

         17                 Some provisions of Intro. 329, may

         18  help promote Integrated Pest Management, of IPM.

         19  Just to clarify, IPM is a set of techniques that

         20  reduce dependence upon pesticides by eliminating

         21  harborage, food, and water sources, that keep pests

         22  alive.  IPM involves coupling these changes with

         23  improved hygiene, public education, and judicious

         24  use of least toxic materials to reduce pest

         25  populations.  When these other methods of pest
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          2  control are inadequate, IPM may still incorporate

          3  the use of some pesticides.  New York City has made

          4  significant strides in the past several years to

          5  incorporate IPM into its pest control practices.

          6                 I am going to just talk a little bit

          7  about the projects that the City has done over the

          8  last few years. Specifically, NYCHA and the Health

          9  Department, have collaborated since 1999, to conduct

         10  and evaluate building- wide IPM in public housing.

         11  In the past, the Council has provided support for

         12  these projects.  To date, IPM techniques have been

         13  applied in nearly 2,000 apartments in Bushwick and

         14  East Harlem.  This effort has found IPM to be

         15  successful though labor intensive, and is leading

         16  NYCHA to modify its pest control practices system-

         17  wide to depend less on the use of residual spray

         18  pesticides.

         19                 Based on the success of this effort,

         20  our Childhood Asthma Initiative has begun community-

         21  based IPM in private housing in Brooklyn, and will

         22  be contracting for IPM in privately held apartments

         23  in multi- unit dwellings with asthmatics in Central

         24  and East Harlem, and in the South Bronx.  These

         25  efforts will apply IPM in apartments of asthmatic

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  children, and by working with private pest control

          3  firms, we hope to build a greater capacity for IPM

          4  in low- income communities.

          5                 The Health Department's Bureau of

          6  Veterinary and Pest Control has launched sizable IPM

          7  rodent control efforts in the South Bronx, East and

          8  Central Harlem, and the Bushwick, and the Bedford-

          9  Stuyvesant sections of Brooklyn.  It recently

         10  received a grant from the Center for Disease Control

         11  and Prevention, or CDC, to create an Integrated

         12  Rodent Management Institute that will teach exterior

         13  and interior rodent and pest control techniques to

         14  pest control firms, landlords, and superintendents

         15  throughout New York City.

         16                 The City Parks Department has

         17  significantly reduced its use of spray pesticides in

         18  City parks, and is turning to safer and less toxic

         19  products.  They have worked closely with other City

         20  agencies to bring IPM strategies to control rodents

         21  in parks, including landscaping, use of rodent bait,

         22  and improved sanitation.

         23                 I have highlighted some of the

         24  activities by the City around IPM and least toxic

         25  pest control to demonstrate that the City is already
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          2  pursuing policies consistent with the intent of

          3  Intro. 329.  While we are really in agreement with

          4  intent of Intro. 329, we still have a number of

          5  concerns about some of the components of the bill.

          6                 First, the bill requires the

          7  cessation of all pesticide products that contain

          8  known, probable, or possible carcinogens, over

          9  different timetables.  This limitation does not take

         10  into account the likelihood of human exposure to

         11  these products.  The Health Department incorporates

         12  IPM in its management of West Nile virus.  The

         13  approach is to focus on standing water and the use

         14  of larvicides.  However, when necessary to protect

         15  the health of New Yorkers, the City currently uses

         16  ground applications of Anvil 10+10, containing

         17  Sumithrin, which is a pyrethroid pesticide, and

         18  piperonyl butoxide, which is a synergist which helps

         19  the pesticide take its action, when control of adult

         20  mosquitoes is justified based on surveillance and

         21  risk of West Nile virus.  A very small amount of

         22  these products is used, 119 gallons in 2004, which

         23  is a tiny proportion of the nearly 300,000 gallons

         24  and one million pounds of pesticides applied City-

         25  wide.  Piperonyl butoxide is listed by the EPA as a
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          2   "possible carcinogenic," thus rendering the entire

          3  product unusable under Intro. 329 without a formal

          4  waiver. Effective alternatives to the products used

          5  are not available, since every viable adulticide

          6  (phonetic), except Malathion, contains piperonyl

          7  butoxide.

          8                 Also, by forbidding the use of any

          9  products that contain possible carcinogens, the bill

         10  would effectively prohibit the City from using

         11  cockroach bait stations containing fipronil. This

         12  product, though identified by EPA as a "possible

         13  carcinogenic" is fully containerized, does not

         14  become airborne, and poses little or not potential

         15  for human exposure.  This product is found in off-

         16  the- shelf cockroach and ant control products such

         17  as, MaxForce Baits, MaxForce gel, and Over n' Out.

         18  Eliminating its use would make it much harder for

         19  New Yorkers to safely reduce the cockroach

         20  population.

         21                 We have another concern with the

         22  bill's immediate prohibition of Toxicity Category I

         23  and prohibition of Toxicity Category II products in

         24  the near future.  Toxicity Category is a summary

         25  measure of the worst potential, acute toxic effects
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          2  of a product, be they acute oral toxicity, acute

          3  inhalation toxicity, acute dermal toxicity, eye

          4  irritation, or skin irritation.  Some products like

          5  household cleaners containing bleach are Toxicity

          6  Category I products, despite their relative safety

          7  and effectiveness as components of good IPM.  Boric

          8  acid is a critical component of NYCHA and the Health

          9  Department's IPM effort, yet some applications are

         10  Toxicity Category I or II, due to eye irritation

         11  effects.  Prohibiting the use of Toxicity Category I

         12  or II products may increase the usage of less

         13  effective products, which have comparable or more

         14  problematic long- term effects.  For example, the

         15  Toxicity Category only addresses toxicological

         16  effects and does not address effects such as,

         17  reproductive, neurotoxic, or other chronic effects.

         18                 It should be noted that any person

         19  applying a pesticide for the City, whether an

         20  employee, a contractor, or any person making a

         21  commercial application of pesticide, must be

         22  licensed by the New York State Department of

         23  Environmental Conservation.  Persons who are

         24  licensed must be trained in general knowledge

         25  regarding pesticides and must have additional
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          2  training specific to the specialized license

          3  category that they are in.

          4                 While specific exemptions could be

          5  carved out for the pesticide products I have

          6  mentioned, there are other pesticides that are

          7  useful and pose little or no exposure risks for

          8  humans when used by professional applicators,

          9  although they may meet the Toxicity Category

         10  criteria in this bill.  We believe that additional

         11  thought is needed to develop an approach that

         12  ensures agencies use the least toxic product that is

         13  also the most effective, and poses the least threat

         14  to human health based on how it is applied in real

         15  world situations.

         16                 Furthermore, the bill makes "health

         17  emergencies" the basis for waivers, but that

         18  threshold is vague, and probably too high for

         19  granting some exemptions.  The law as written, would

         20  require waivers for the use of current larvicides in

         21  catch basins to control West Nile virus, even though

         22  they pose minimal exposure risks to residents.  In

         23  addition, the mosquito control for severe

         24  infestations of nuisance mosquitoes in the Rockaways

         25  would probably be prohibited by these restrictions.
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          2  Waivers would also be required for non-

          3  containerized rodent bait placed into holes.  Rat

          4  burrows cannot be effectively treated with

          5  containerized rodenticides.

          6                 Section 17- 902 (c), also calls for

          7  the agencies to use non- pesticide alternatives,

          8  whenever such a product is available.  This

          9  terminology is both, too prohibitive, and too

         10  permissive.  Boric acid, diatomaceous earth, bleach,

         11  and other products that pose little exposure risks

         12  to residents and occupants, are still pesticides,

         13  both in the regulatory definition and by Intro.

         14  329's definition.  Non- pesticide alternatives also

         15  include sonic barriers and countless other products,

         16  with dubious and untested claims of efficacy against

         17  pests.

         18                 Surely, we do not want contractors to

         19  use these products. Section 17-906 would imposed

         20  onerous notification requirements that mirror some

         21  of those in Intro. 328, but apply to most pesticide

         22  applications, not just those for lawn care. The

         23  basis for concern about spraying of liquid chemicals

         24  on lawns is that there may be drift, accidental

         25  exposures, and failure to keep away from lawns
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          2  without such notification.  For the most part, these

          3  concerns do not apply to the application of

          4  pesticides in commercial and residential buildings,

          5  and other situations where there is little or no

          6  possibility of accidental or heavy exposure.

          7  Requiring 48- hour prior and five days post

          8  application posting is additionally burdensome and

          9  difficult to enforced, and will likely add

         10  substantially to the cost of pest control services

         11  without providing a tangible public health or

         12  environmental benefit.

         13                 I would also like to point out one

         14  other concern that we have at the DOH.  Enforcement

         15  of this bill rests on knowing about the activities

         16  of, or responding to complaints about the City's

         17  contractors and their subcontractors pest control

         18  practices.  The Health Department does not currently

         19  have the staff to manage a potentially large

         20  enforcement operation. We believe that contracting

         21  procedures and remedies to be enforced by

         22  contracting agencies may be a more appropriate

         23  method of achieving contract compliance.

         24  Contractors who use unsafe or inadequate IPM pest

         25  control, could be made to be subject to contract
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          2  penalties, which may include withholding of fees,

          3  forfeiture of contracts, or future ineligibility.

          4                 Finally, the City Law Department has

          5  informed us that because the State Environment

          6  Conservation Law oversees matters relating to the

          7  distribution, sale, use, and transportation of

          8  pesticides, the City may be preempted from imposing

          9  conditions on how pesticides are used.

         10                 In summary, the City is committed to

         11  reducing the amount of pesticides used as well as,

         12  potential pesticide exposures, and to further

         13  developing approaches to use the least toxic, but

         14  effective products.  We could therefore, support the

         15  intent of the bill and the bill itself, if certain

         16  modifications were to be made.  These modifications

         17  must include, among other changes, changes in the

         18  categories of pesticides that would be prohibited, a

         19  recognition that chronic effects may be mitigated by

         20  the method the products are used and a change in

         21  terminology from non- pesticide alternative to least

         22  toxic alternatives.

         23                 I would like to thank you for the

         24  opportunity to discuss these proposals.  We look

         25  forward to continuing to work with the Council
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          2  toward the goal to reducing human exposure to

          3  harmful pesticides, and improving the control of

          4  pests for New York City's residents.  And we would

          5  be pleased to answer any questions that you may

          6  have.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

          8  have a couple to start, and I know that Chairperson

          9  Gennaro does, and then I will come back with a

         10  couple of others.

         11                 On the issue of whether DOH is the

         12  appropriate agency to enforced this law:

         13                 One, just kind of a point, and then

         14  two, a question.  Just so you know in the bill, in

         15  Section 17- 903 and 904, where we talk about

         16  enforcement and penalties, the bill reads that "the

         17  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene shall have

         18  concurrent authority with the State of New York to

         19  enforce the provisions of the chapter."  So whether

         20  it is DOH or a different City agency, I just want to

         21  make sure that we are all clear, that that would be

         22  enforcement power with concurrently, with the

         23  Attorney General, or the other appropriate State

         24  agencies.  So I just wanted to make sure you guys

         25  were aware of that.
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          2                 And then ask, if you do not think it

          3  is DOH, which City agency do you think would be

          4  appropriate?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  It

          6  is unclear to me whether the State will actually be

          7  doing the enforcement in here, but in reality.  So

          8  that is something that I just do not have answer on.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Can I just say, I

         10  do not mean to interrupt you from the start.  It is

         11  our understanding that that is a roll that the

         12  Attorney General's Office plays.  The Attorney

         13  General's Office is scheduled to testify later on in

         14  the hearing, so we can obviously ask for

         15  clarification of that, and folks from your agency, I

         16  am sure, will still be here.  So that might give us

         17  some more clarification on that point.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         19  Another note is that, the Health Department is not

         20  in retail stores.  So, to enforce it in retail

         21  stores, except upon complaint would be a whole

         22  different effort for the Health Department that we

         23  have not done.

         24                 I guess, thirdly, is that obviously

         25  we are not the parallel agency to the Environmental
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          2  Agency at the State level, so.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  If you guys do

          4  not think it is DOH, for the reasons that you just

          5  said or other ones, we are more very open to

          6  obviously considering if it should be housed

          7  somewhere else.  From what you are saying, it sounds

          8  like you are suggesting some of the enforcement

          9  should go to the Department of Consumer Affairs, and

         10  some of it should go to the Department of

         11  Environmental Protection.  Is that what you are

         12  saying?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         14  Those are possibilities.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Are there other

         16  possibilities, that Sanitation or somewhere else?  I

         17  am pretty sure it is not Cultural Affairs, so we can

         18  cross that one off. That would be really out of

         19  base.  But any others.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         21  Those are the ones that came to our mind when we

         22  were talking about it.  Unless anyone else has

         23  anything.  We have not talked too much to the other

         24  agencies about it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Okay.  If I
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          2  could just ask, as you go back and talk to other

          3  agencies, we have had struggles I will say in the

          4  past over issues with the Department of Consumer

          5  Affairs.  We are in kind of our collective quest for

          6  improved public health issues there has been things

          7  around pharmaceuticals, pricing, emergency

          8  contraception, et cetera, that we believe fall under

          9  the purview of the Department of Consumer Affairs.

         10  And they have not.  I am not exactly sure what DCA's

         11  relationship is to hardware stores or places where

         12  pesticides is sold.  If in fact, there is not pre-

         13  existing one, there seems to be a resistance on the

         14  part of Consumer Affairs for expanding.  So I would

         15  ask, if that is the way we head, if you could be

         16  helpful in facilitating those discussions.  And I

         17  think at some, since this is a kind of a theme that

         18  has come up a little bit, as it relates to health

         19  issues and consumer affairs, that at some point it

         20  would be useful for the Committee, the staff, DOH,

         21  Office of Legislative Affairs, and Consumer Affairs

         22  to all talk collectively about how we can figure out

         23  how to deal with these health issues that end up in

         24  retail establishments, in a more productive manner

         25  than we have been able to figure out to date.  So an
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          2  unrelated, but related issue.

          3                 On page two, where you talk about the

          4  Health and Nutrition Examination Survey, that is the

          5  survey where folks are going to be door knocking.

          6  Is that correct?

          7                 Okay, tell me how you are finding out

          8  this information about people's exposure to

          9  pesticide in that study.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  We

         11  are actually doing blood and urine testing.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So, you are not

         13  asking them, like did your neighbor spray or

         14  whatever.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  No,

         16  we are actually testing their blood and urine to see

         17  if they were exposed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, and how,

         19  when is that, it is a long project I know, when is

         20  the results do you think going to be done?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  I

         22  think they recently completed collection of data.

         23  The analysis of the blood and urine samples do take

         24  a little longer, and are being done by the State

         25  labs, as well as the Centers for Disease Control.
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          2  We do not have an exact date for the completion of

          3  those, but they are starting to roll in, but I do

          4  not know when the exact final reports will be ready.

          5

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  When you were

          7  talking about the IPM, Integrated Pest Management

          8  Program, you spoke of it as it relates to DOH and to

          9  NYCHA.  And as I understand it, in, just trying to

         10  get some clarification.  Is IPM budget- wise housed

         11  in DOH's budget or NYCHA's budget?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         13  Mostly, NYCHA's. I will let Brian Clarke speak to

         14  that.  We did have a project that we did in the

         15  past, the money from the Council was housed in the

         16  DOH budget.  But NYCHA is doing many more activities

         17  related to that.  So Dan Cass was working with Brian

         18  on the NYCHA project.  But I guess Brian can address

         19  most of these issues.

         20                 MR. CLARKE:  Good morning.  I am

         21  Brian Clarke, Director of Technical Services for the

         22  New York City Housing Authority.  The budget was

         23  from FY 2001 and 2002, and it was baselined in the

         24  Department of Health's budget.  We worked out a

         25  contract or a memo of understanding, where some
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          2  monies were transferred over to NYCHA.  Those monies

          3  have all been, you know, since spent.  The program

          4  right now, is really being self- funded. You know

          5  the agencies are committed to it, so actually,

          6  Columbia School of Public Health, the Department of

          7  Health, and also NYCHA have continued the program

          8  through using our own operating funds.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Just relating,

         10  the way you mentioned that was in DOH, that is the

         11  asthma stuff.  Is that right?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         13  There was separate money for IPM.  And it might have

         14  been part of some of the asthma money at one point,

         15  but I think- -  Maybe Dan can answer this better,

         16  actually.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

         18                 MR. CASS:  Hello.  There were two

         19  sources of funding that came to the DOH.  Initially

         20  the program was begun with some seed money from the

         21  EPA Region II Office, and the later the town -  -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Could you just

         23  identify yourself again, I do not know if you did or

         24  not?

         25                 MR. CASS:  I am sorry, I am Dan Cass
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          2  from the City Health Department.  Subsequently, the

          3  City Council provided two years of funding, it was

          4  actually, three, but the third year was actually cut

          5  following budget crisis.  So, we had two years of

          6  funding to expand that program with NYCHA in public

          7  housing.

          8                 The asthma initiative is self-

          9  funding right now, some demonstration projects in

         10  private housing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Commissioner,

         12  when you talked about needing extra staff, two or

         13  three.  Would that be the equivalent of two or three

         14  full- time staff or part- staff?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  No,

         16  it is hard to know.  That is an estimate.  We talked

         17  to some counties around the State who are doing

         18  this, they have maybe one or so people, kind of on

         19  top of this.  Clearly, the biggest effort will be in

         20  the first year.  And that usually is seen when any

         21  law goes into effect, people start calling.  We do

         22  not know for sure how many people will call.  In

         23  terms of lawn care, it is mostly in areas, Staten

         24  Island areas of Queens, and some parts of Brooklyn,

         25  that there are more lawns and more private housing.
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          2  So, that is where we expect more of the calls to

          3  come from.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   In your

          5  testimony, where you were talking about West Nile

          6  virus, so this would be true in other areas too, we

          7  are not the only counties that had pesticide

          8  responses to the West Nile virus problem.  And I

          9  think Westchester, actually, had a fair amount of

         10  things that they did. And they are one of the

         11  counties that is already in the State, opted into

         12  the State law.   Have you, in general, or any part,

         13  even considering these laws, spoken to Westchester

         14  or any other counties to find out, you know, it is

         15  obviously clear from the testimony, you would prefer

         16  not to be using harsher pesticides, and I was

         17  wondering if you have been able to get any guidance

         18  from any place else that has already opted in about

         19  what else they used and whether there are options

         20  there for us?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  We

         22  spoke to Albany.  When we asked them about what they

         23  did with West Nile virus, the impression that I got

         24  was that, when their Sunset Bill went into effect,

         25  after that they did not have to spray for West Nile
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          2  virus.  They sprayed before the Sunset Bill went

          3  into effect.  So, I do not know if they actually had

          4  to deal with it.              We did speak to, or I

          5  do not know if we were able to get in touch with

          6  Westchester, yet, but we can explore that with them

          7  as well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   And do you know,

          9  the training that you talked about, whether there is

         10  any or if so, how much training on non- toxic pest

         11  management?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         13  Training by the City?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Training by the

         15  State.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  I

         17  do not know. Is anyone aware?

         18                 MR. CASS:  About two years ago the

         19  State DEC offered some grant monies to local

         20  governments and other entities to initiate non-

         21  toxic, or least toxic pest control training.  New

         22  York City was successful in getting some of that

         23  money.  And we trained all of the pest control

         24  operators in the New York City Housing Authority for

         25  two days on IPM techniques.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   I just want to

          3  say we have been joined by a number of Committee

          4  members, from Brooklyn Councilman Al Vann; Minority

          5  Leader from Staten Island Jimmy Oddo; and Council

          6  Member Kendall Stewart of Brooklyn.  I am going to

          7  turn the questioning over to Chairperson Gennaro,

          8  now.  I just wanted to say now, we have called the

          9  clerk to come over to vote on the one, there is two

         10  resolutions and two bills on the agenda today.  The

         11  two bills deal with pesticide issues as does one of

         12  the resolutions.  We are voting on the other

         13  resolution, which is to honor the work of the

         14  doctors at Montefiore Hospital who separated the

         15  Siamese twins who were there a month or so ago.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you.

         18  And thank you Chairperson Quinn.  Thank you

         19  Commissioner.  Let me just use the other microphone

         20  a minute.  How is that?  Okay.  Thank you

         21  Commissioner for your comprehensive testimony.  And

         22  thank you Chris for your thorough questioning.

         23  Chris covered some of the points that I was going to

         24  cover.  So, I will get into some other areas.

         25                 With regard, again I made some notes
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          2  in your statement here.  And on the second page, you

          3  indicated that under Intro. 328, that, you know, DOH

          4  would be responsible for enforcing the law.  And you

          5  are would have to hire or redirect some people to do

          6  that.  And then, was this the discussion about other

          7  agencies, maybe, coming into there?   Is that what

          8  Chris was getting at about, you know, DEP or you

          9  know, DOS, or some other, but you have had no

         10  consultation with those agencies on that?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  At

         12  this point, we have not, no.  But we can have

         13  further discussions with the City.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Yes, because

         15  it was one of the first points that you raise.  And

         16  so, to the extent that we can get some clarification

         17  on that, Michael would have the ball, that would be

         18  good.

         19                 And also, I am kind of heartened

         20  that, with respect to Intro. 329, you seem to have

         21  embraced the concept of, you know, IPM and are sort

         22  of moving that down the track.  And I just wonder if

         23  we cannot figure out a way to, you know,

         24  institutionalize this in law somehow, so that you

         25  know, other successor administrations who may not be
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          2  as, you know, inclined towards IPM, you know, they

          3  would be sort of like locked in by law.  So, it is

          4  all well and good that everyone in this room here

          5  believes in IPM, but we are trying to, you know,

          6  protect the citizens from successive councils and

          7  mayoralties that may see differently.  So, I guess,

          8  you know just all of us having a commitment to IPM,

          9  just does not get us to where we really want to be.

         10  And we really have to make this a matter of law.

         11  And so, we are looking to sort of close the deal on

         12  a law that would get us that.  What are your

         13  thoughts on that?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  As

         15  you said, that, you know, we clearly support the

         16  intent of the bill.  The Health Department has been

         17  recognized as a leading agency in making IPM happen

         18  in New York City.  And I think other agencies in New

         19  York City have as well.  And we have been noted

         20  nationally in some of the projects that we have been

         21  working on.

         22                 We also would support a bill, such as

         23  this, with modifications as we were discussing.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Do you have

         25  any specific modifications that you would be willing
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          2  to tender to us in some form as we take this?

          3  Because I think this is where we want to go.  I

          4  think, you know I do not want to speak on behalf of

          5  the Chairperson, but we are really looking to get

          6  something done here.  And I just have got to believe

          7  that, if we are both committed to the notion of

          8  Integrated Pest Management, that at the end of the

          9  day, we can stand side- by- side on the bill.  And

         10  that is really what, you know, want to do.

         11                 We are grateful for your embrace of

         12  IPM and, you know, for the fact that these are

         13  pesticides, by your own statement, has gone down

         14  precipitously over the last couple of years.  These

         15  are all good things.

         16                 And, by your own statement that the

         17  City does not know how much actual exposure to

         18  pesticides, you know, occur in New York City, and

         19  you are endeavoring to do this pesticide exposure

         20  study.  When do you think that that study is going

         21  to yield results?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  I

         23  am not exactly sure.  I think we would have to get

         24  back to you on that.  We are still in the process of

         25  analyzing some of blood samples and the urine

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  samples.  So, we will have to get back to you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  But, you

          4  know, clearly I see that as a recognition by your

          5  department that pesticide exposure is an issue.  So,

          6  once again, we are on the same page. So, this is all

          7  good.  I am just trying to be positive here.  I am

          8  trying to figure out common ground, that is a good

          9  thing.

         10                 And on, come back to that, on page

         11  four of your statement, when you talk about the,

         12  second paragraph, about the Toxicity Category I and

         13  Category II products, and you close out that

         14  paragraph about that "the toxicity category only

         15  addresses certain effects, and does not address

         16  facts such as reproductive, neurotoxic, or other

         17  chronic effects."  Is that to say that, you believe

         18  our bill should sort of go into those areas?  I am

         19  not quite sure of what you were getting at by that.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  Do

         21  you want to answer that?  Edgar Butts, Dr. Butts,

         22  has a lot of expertise in pesticides, so I will let

         23  him answer some of that after I address this.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:
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          2  But, I think the idea is that toxicity is one way to

          3  measure how bad a pesticide or an agent can be.  And

          4  there are other things that we worry about with

          5  exposure to contaminants or other unsafe products,

          6  such as whether they cause cancer, whether they

          7  cause reproductive effects, and whether they cause

          8  other effects.  We, I think we need to figure out a

          9  way to craft this, how we are dealing with this law

         10  so it addresses both the issues that we are

         11  concerned about, toxicity, reproductive effects, et

         12  cetera, without making it so one can never use these

         13  products, because as we mentioned for example, in

         14  West Nile virus, even though PBO is a potential,

         15  possible carcinogen, it is occasionally necessary. We

         16  also want to emphasize that IPM does not completely

         17  eliminate the use of pesticides.  It eliminates the

         18  use of, you know, you try to use the least toxic

         19  pesticide available.  But, so that is our goal.  But

         20  at times one needs to use some pesticides.  We have

         21  bad pest problems in New York City and we want to

         22  have those opportunities to use certain products.

         23  So, I think we need to figure out a way to craft the

         24  information so it can be a little more flexible, and

         25  a little more protective at the same time.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  My

          3  name is Edgar Butts, I am Assistant Commissioner for

          4  Veterinary and Pest Control for Department of

          5  Health.  My background with working with, my area of

          6  expertise in federal regulation of pesticides, it

          7  goes back to 1976.  I have registered about 35

          8  products, or active ingredients in over 100

          9  products.

         10                 The carte blanche saying you should

         11  not use Category I, or Toxicity Category I or

         12  Toxicity Category II, will drastically limit the

         13  ability of New York City to control pests. You may

         14  have a product that has, it is Category I, which is

         15  danger.  It is a signal word, it is 156.10 and 40

         16  CFR that designates how this is done.  You go

         17  through and you conduct acute studies.  And if you

         18  have eye irritation, or you have a skin irritation,

         19  it may put you into Category I, or make you use a

         20  danger signal word.

         21                 That signal word tells you that you

         22  should be very, very careful with that pesticide.

         23  You should actually be careful with all pesticides.

         24  But, you should not categorically say, you should

         25  not use a Category I or a Category II, because you
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          2  may be able to use a lot less of one of those

          3  products.  That may be the best product that fits

          4  into the Integrated Pest Management Program that is

          5  available.  And just because it is a Category I or a

          6  Category II, if it is safely used, if you have got

          7  the proper protection equipment, and all of the

          8  people that are going to be applying for the City or

          9  on behalf of the City are licensed by the State of

         10  New York, the Department of Environmental

         11  Conservation, these people understand and know the

         12  reason for using personal protection equipment.

         13  These products are applied, often they are diluted.

         14  But they are applied and they may be the best

         15  alternative you have.

         16                 We always want to use the least toxic

         17  alternative. And I will say, I want to go back to a

         18  comment on Integrated Pest Management.  The

         19  Department of Health, across the board, is strongly

         20  embracing Integrated Pest Management.  I think our

         21  West Nile Program is a model for Integrated Pest

         22  Management.  Our rodent program is moving very

         23  strongly towards Integrated Pest Management.  And I

         24  think we have got a set of criteria that we are

         25  following, that it is in the works, and it is
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          2  already being implemented.  So, we fully embrace

          3  Integrated Pest Management.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay, and

          5  thank you. Thank you.  I just, again, I'm making a

          6  follow- up about your statement, about, that you

          7  seem to be saying here in your statement, that we

          8  are not speaking to the effects on reproduction,

          9  neurotoxic, and chronic effects.  And I am still

         10  trying to decipher, you know, what you meant by like

         11  the last sentence on that paragraph, I guess I just

         12  explore some other time.  And as we do more on it, I

         13  do not know what you are getting at there, you have

         14  not explained it.  So, I do not know what you mean.

         15  Please go ahead.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  When

         17  EPA registered a product there is a large number of

         18  studies that are done. There is chronic studies,

         19  oncogenicity, mutagenicity, teratogenicity, a number

         20  of studies like that, 90- day feeding studies, to

         21  look at the risk.  Neurotoxicity chronic effects,

         22  oncogenicity, those types of effects were not

         23  considered in the Toxicity Category.  The Toxicity

         24  Category only looks at acute studies.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Right.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  That

          3  is all it is a toxicity.  If you are going to look

          4  at a product and say you should not use it because

          5  it is a carcinogen, you probably ought to be looking

          6  at birth defects, or reproductive effects, you ought

          7  to be looking at neurotoxicity, and other potential

          8  chronic effects.  And it is just something we

          9  thought was worth putting in.  It is very difficult

         10  to look at a label, or even to go into a database

         11  and to determine what effects that a particular

         12  product has.

         13                 Did I answer your question?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Yes, I

         15  believe now that, I just wanted to get the sense of

         16  why the statement was made, and I guess, by us

         17  focusing just on Toxicity Categories, and not

         18  dealing with other things, we should look at this as

         19  well.  And perhaps that would come up with a bill

         20  that is more restrictive. And that is okay with us.

         21     So, thank you, thank you for that.

         22                 The last page of your statement with

         23  regard to contracting procedures being a way to

         24  enforce or carrying out, you know, IPM, just kind of

         25  run by me again.  You know, the staff that do it, so
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          2  we can do this through contracting.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

          4  This bill covers City agencies and their

          5  contractors.  And if a City agency is hiring a

          6  contractor to do a job, that contractor needs to be

          7  doing it according to what the City requirements

          8  are.  And if that is to use the least toxic products

          9  or whatever, that is what they need to be doing.  If

         10  they are not doing it, the question is should the

         11  Health Department go out and say you are not doing

         12  it, and issue a violation?  Or should that agency

         13  who is contracting with the contractor, actually be

         14  taking some steps to either firing them, or ending

         15  their contract, or not contracting with them in the

         16  future.   So there are other methods that we believe

         17  would be acceptable, and probably more effective,

         18  because these agencies need to be on top of their

         19  contractors in general.            COUNCIL MEMBER

         20  GENNARO:  Thank you.  Thank you. Chairperson Quinn,

         21  I am concluding my questioning.  Thank you all very

         22  much for your interests and your dedication to

         23  Integrated Pest Management.  We look forward to

         24  working with you to getting these two bills down the

         25  track.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Let me just ask

          3  one question, and than we are going to call the roll

          4  on the other resolution, and then some other members

          5  have questions.

          6                 Commissioner, when you were just

          7  responding to Chairperson Gennaro's question, it

          8  sounded a little bit like you were saying, you know,

          9  this for a host of reasons was undoable. But I was

         10  wondering, Commissioner, other counties have done

         11  this, and other counties have been able to comply.

         12  And it may be your position, New York, because we

         13  are bigger, because we are New York, because

         14  whatever, that what they could do, we cannot do. But

         15  I was struck when you were speaking to Chairperson

         16  Gennaro, other places have done it.  Why do you

         17  think it is that they have been able to?  But it

         18  seemed to me what you were saying back to him, was

         19  that we would not be able to.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  I

         21  was, may be I am misunderstanding, but.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  It was one of

         23  your colleagues.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         25  Yes, I know, but I was answering directly his
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          2  question about the contracting issues.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  No, no the

          4  conversation he was having with Commissioner - -

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Edgar

          6  Butts.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I could not

          8  remember your last name, I am sorry.  So, when you

          9  were answering Jim's question just a few minutes

         10  ago, it seemed to me like you were pointing out why

         11  this law would not be able to work in New York.  It

         12  seemed to me that you were saying, numerating the

         13  reasons why it was not going to be a provision that

         14  would be enforceable, realistic in New York City.

         15  Maybe I misunderstood what you were saying, but when

         16  you were answering his questions, what stuck in my

         17  head was other places have done it.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  No,

         19  Ma'am, the point that I was making is that you just

         20  cannot go, I think it is the wrong direction to go,

         21  to go in and just take off Category I and prohibit

         22  Toxicity Category I and Toxicity Category II

         23  products.  Because I think it will have a negative

         24  impact on an Integrated Pest Management Program.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  But, I guess
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          2  maybe, let me rephrase my question a little with you

          3  having restated that.  You know, in Westchester they

          4  have done Category I, II, III, and IV, and

          5  prohibited the use.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  They

          7  have prohibited Category IV?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes, as I

          9  understand it, yes. I mean Westchester is going to

         10  testify.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  That

         12  makes no sense, because Category IV, you almost have

         13  to have water for it to be Category IV.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well, let me, is

         15  Westchester here?  They are coming.  Is that wrong

         16  with what I just.

         17                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  I am not involved

         18  with that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well you know

         20  what, they are going to have a heart attack, the

         21  Sergeants- At- Arms.  Can you go to the mic and talk

         22  into the mic and introduce yourself?

         23                 I mean they have a more stringent

         24  law, I might be wrong about IV, but as we understand

         25  it they have prohibited all four categories.
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          2                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  I am Wayne Schneider

          3  from the Westchester County Department of Health.

          4  In regards to the Sunset law that you are talking

          5  about, the restriction of pesticides by City

          6  agencies.  I am not directly involved with that, I

          7  am just involved with the Neighbor Notification

          8  laws.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So you do not

         10  know which categories were prohibited in

         11  Westchester?

         12                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  No, I do not.  You

         13  would have to contact, I will give you a contact

         14  person.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, thank you

         16  very much. You guys can just trade seats again.  Let

         17  me just pull out what I have on this one point.  I

         18  certainly, know maybe we are wrong about IV, I

         19  certainly know that Westchester has implemented

         20  restrictions beyond I and II.  Maybe it is only

         21  Category III and not IV, but I certainly know that

         22  we are correct, that Westchester has done more than

         23  what we are talking about here.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  If you

         25  look at the criteria for Category III, it is not a
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          2  very, again, it is an acute toxicity.  It is a very

          3  low toxicity.  Let me just add, you remove

          4  pesticides from our arsenal, or you remove a number

          5  of pesticides from our arsenal, and we are going to

          6  have a pest problem in New York City.  I am a

          7  strong, strong, proponent personally, of IPM.  We

          8  have to have pesticides.  We absolutely have to have

          9  pesticides.  And what I am saying is that you should

         10  not just categorically remove these Category I and

         11  Category II.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Let me just, you

         13  know, I now have the Westchester Sunset stuff in

         14  front of me.  And it says, "effective immediately

         15  Category I, effective January 1, 2001 Category II,

         16  effective January 2002, no person shall apply any

         17  pesticide on County property except as provided"

         18  blah, blah, blah, and all these other sections.  And

         19  what this section spells out, is Category III, and I

         20  think maybe even Category IV.  We will go over this

         21  with you after the hearing.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Yes,

         23  Ma'am.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  But it certainly

         25  sounds, so I guess the overall point is that

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  Westchester has gone farther than what we are

          3  talking about doing here today.  So, I guess my

          4  question is, or really request, is that we have

          5  established Westchester has gone farther than we are

          6  talking about.  You think that what we are talking

          7  about is going too far for New York.  I accept that.

          8    I would ask that you guys talk to, and we will set

          9  up the meeting, our colleague from Westchester I am

         10  sure will help us do that, that we sit down with the

         11  people in Westchester and figure out how it has

         12  worked for them, to see whether there is something

         13  that we can learn there that might make some

         14  prohibitions possible in New York City from what we

         15  have learned in Westchester.

         16                 The other thing I would ask you to

         17  think about, is if the other models in other

         18  localities that we have seen all take, when they do

         19  prohibitions it is based on these Categories I and

         20  II, whatever, if there is another way you think to

         21  do it, specifying chemicals, specifying pesticides,

         22  et cetera, if there is another means to the end, we

         23  are open to considering that. You know, plagiarism

         24  is something that you are suppose to do in academia,

         25  but something we do frequently in government.  So
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          2  other places did categories, we took categories, if

          3  there is a better way to do it, fine.  And

          4  hopefully, Westchester can be some kind of a guide

          5  to us.  And we are more than happy to go through the

          6  different parts, show you what we are reading, if we

          7  reading it wrong.

          8                 And just before we move on to

          9  questions from Council Member Stewart, I want to say

         10  that we have joined by two more members of the

         11  Committee; Council Member Sears from Queens, and

         12  Council Member Yvette Clarke from Brooklyn.  And we

         13  are now going to call the roll on Reso. 660, which

         14  is introduced by Council Member Rivera, Addabbo,

         15  Avella, Baez, Dilan, Foster, Gennaro, Jackson,

         16  James, Koppell, Liu, Quinn, Seabrook, and Weprin.

         17  It is a resolution honoring the special skills of

         18  the medical staff of the Children's Hospital at

         19  Montefiore who performed surgeries for Carl and

         20  Clarence Aguirre, I am sorry if I am mispronouncing

         21  that, honoring the bravery of these two young

         22  children, and their mother Arlene Aguirre, and

         23  expressing the enthusiasm of this City and the world

         24  in their successful recovery for a bright future.

         25                 If the clerk could call the roll.
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          2                 COUNSEL CLERK:  Council Member Quinn.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Clarke.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Stewart.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Vann.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Oddo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of six in

         15  the affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         16  abstentions, the item is adopted.  Council members

         17  please sign the Committee Report. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Thank you.  Now

         19  we have a question from Council Member Stewart.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Dr. Butts,

         21  that is your name, right?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Yes,

         23  Sir.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  You use the

         25  term toxicity, could you give me a percentage as to,
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          2  what percentage of the pesticide that we use is

          3  considered biodegradable?  In other words, we have

          4  pesticides that may disintegrate and may not cause

          5  that amount of harm to the environment.  And we have

          6  those that will take forever and end up in, you

          7  know, that is not so friendly to the environment.

          8  Could you tell us what percentage that can be

          9  considered biodegradable?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:

         11  (microphone not on)

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   I think your mic

         13  is off.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Sure.

         15  I am sorry, I cannot, my name is Edgar Butts.  I

         16  cannot give you a percentage.  What one has to do is

         17  understand that pesticides dissipate in a number of

         18  ways.  They dissipate by photodegradation, light

         19  breaks them down, they volatilize, there is a number

         20  of ways that they break down.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I understand

         22  that.  I understand that.  But when we talk about

         23  biodegradable, the elements usually, for example,

         24  rain, water, whatever tends to with time, you know,

         25  a short period of time they become somewhat friendly
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          2  to the environment.  They may destroy certain pests,

          3  et cetera.  But there are certain types of

          4  pesticides that may have ingredients like benzine,

          5  those different types of things, I do not know.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  No

          7  pesticides have benzine, Sir, they have all been

          8  banned.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  They have

         10  been banned, all right.  But they have other

         11  ingredients that take forever, and may end up in the

         12  birds and other animals, or whatever, if they happen

         13  to come in contact with that pesticide.  Do you have

         14  any thoughts on that and give us some explanation on

         15  that?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  I

         17  cannot say that in my regulatory experience working

         18  with EPA, I did not work with them, but I worked on

         19  behalf of clients.  EPA looks at biodegradation at

         20  the ability of pesticides to degrade within the

         21  body, to degrade within plants.  They look at that,

         22  and that is part of the criteria that they use for

         23  registration.  And what they are trying to do is to

         24  move to a softer products.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So you are
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          2  saying that the idea is to go to that there

          3  direction, but you are not saying, how many or what

          4  percentage of these products that we use, on a wide-

          5  scale, that does that.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Well I

          7  can tell you that the products that we use for

          8  mosquito control, are very degradable.  We have a

          9  half life for anvil of about four hours, and it is

         10  non- residual.  And that is a plus and a minus.  It

         11  is a plus that it is not exposing people.  But it is

         12  a minus in that it does not give as good of control

         13  as we would really like.  It does not give use that

         14  residual control.  But, you know, you take a product

         15  like a rodenticide, it is going to stay in a bait,

         16  and it is going to stay, you put in a burrow.  And

         17  you want it to be there so it is accessible to the

         18  rats or to the rodents.

         19                 But I cannot give you an answer on

         20  which products are "biodegradable".  What we want to

         21  do is use pesticides in the safest way possible, and

         22  with the least exposure.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  In terms of

         24  the pesticide that we use for roach, do you know of

         25  any of these pesticides that will, if they end up in
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          2  water or a stream, that can remain there for any

          3  length of time?  That, for example, if you use it,

          4  and it ends up in water, and if it will be a problem

          5  to children, eventually.  Let us say that you do a

          6  complete spray of an apartment, and then it washes

          7  down and gets into water.  How long would that

          8  remain?  I just want to know if it is biodegradable,

          9  if it will dissipate in a short period of time, that

         10  that pesticide would not be harmful, thereafter?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  I have

         12  to tell you that I do not know that much about the

         13  products for control on cockroaches.  And I would

         14  rather not give you an answer, that I do not know

         15  the answer to.  I am not, cockroaches are not an

         16  area that I know a lot about, the control of

         17  cockroaches.  And I cannot tell you, I know that Mr.

         18  Cass has indicated that Piperonyl is a product that

         19  is used in a bait station, or used in a contained

         20  station for control of cockroaches.  But I cannot

         21  elaborate on pest management for cockroaches,

         22  because I just do not know much about it.  I am

         23  sorry.

         24                 COUNCIL  MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

         25  And those pesticides that are used to spray for the
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          2  Nile virus, you know, mosquitoes, et cetera, do you

          3  have any information of a study that was done as to

          4  that pesticide getting into the ponds and the

          5  streams, and affecting the fishes and wildlife like

          6  that?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  When

          8  we spray, when we do a treatment it is by ground.

          9  And I am talking strictly the adulticiding because

         10  the larvaciding is done with natural products.  It

         11  is done with bacteria, which are in the environment

         12  naturally.  But for control of adult mosquitoes,

         13  when we treat, we have our New York State Department

         14  of Environmental Conservation is there.  We have

         15  maps and we understand and know where all of the

         16  critical areas are for spraying.  We have a buffer

         17  zone that we cannot spray within a 150 feet of a

         18  water source, or you know, or a source where aquatic

         19  animals are.  We strictly abide by that.  DEC works

         20  with us.  They actually go out when we are doing

         21  treatments, and ride behind the police escort, and

         22  we ride behind DEC.  So, there is very little, if

         23  any, of this pesticide getting into water.  We also

         24  do testing of the ponds, or the areas, in the area

         25  where we spray, or where we treat, and we actually
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          2  go out and take pre- samples before we treat and

          3  samples after we treat.  And I do not think there

          4  was any contamination that showed up this year.  And

          5  we are very, very concerned about not harming the

          6  environment, and doing as good a job with as little

          7  exposure as possible.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I heard what

          9  you said, but I am trying to envision, you know,

         10  that mosquitoes they need water, and near to ponds,

         11  and they are near to places that, and saying that

         12  you spray for mosquitoes and try to avoid, as much

         13  as possible - -

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  With

         15  adulticide we absolutely do, because one of the

         16  products, the pyrethroid, has toxicity to aquatic

         17  species.  And we have not seen any effects, because

         18  we are very, very careful.  When you are applying

         19  products to control mosquitoes in water, you are

         20  using bacteria, a bacillus syngentis, or a bacillus

         21  spaericus, those are naturally occurring.  And if

         22  fish or aquatic insects come into contact, there is

         23  little or no effect.  And that is part of the

         24  Integrated Pest Management Program.  And what we are

         25  doing is trying to use more larvacides, to not have
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          2  to use the adulticides.  And we had a very strong

          3  larvacide program this year, and I think it worked

          4  out.

          5                 We had two cases of West Nile that

          6  were contracted in New York City this year.  We used

          7  less adulticiding this year than we used last year.

          8  So, what we are doing is working.  And we are very,

          9  very careful.  And DEC, they were at every treatment

         10  event that we had.  DEC was there.  Our records are

         11  checked, they follow us, they watch how we spray.

         12  And I think, you know, quite frankly, the West Nile

         13  Program, how it is operated, you are welcome to come

         14  out and see.  We would love to have, and we could

         15  show you what we are doing.  It is something that we

         16  very proud of.

         17                 We are looking at minimizing

         18  exposure, but maximizing control.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Is there any

         20  pesticide that we use that, most of the other states

         21  do not use?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Yes.

         23  We do not use Malathion.  We are not using

         24  malathion, that is why we are using symathrin

         25  (phonetic) and that was a decision that was made
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          2  because that is the best available product for us.

          3  But a lot of the states are using malathion.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

          6  Madam Chair, I know that Yvette has questions, but I

          7  am just going to jump in here for a second.  I have

          8  got an emergency in my district that I have to

          9  attend to, I have my Chief of Staff, Peter Washburn,

         10  a great environmentalist in his right, he will be

         11  here for the remainder of the hearing to listen to

         12  all the testimony.  I apologize to the advocates, to

         13  the other good people who are going to come forward,

         14  Westchester and others.  But I have to leave, and I

         15  have to leave now.

         16                 So, thank you Commissioner and

         17  members.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Can I

         19  follow- up on one comment that you made?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Yes, but

         21  than I am taking out of Yvette's time, you can tell

         22  my Chief of Staff, it is fine.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  That

         24  is fine.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Sorry about
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          2  that.  Okay, thank you Madam Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Sure, thank you,

          4  Council Member Gennaro.  We are now going to have

          5  questions from Council Member Clarke and than

          6  Council Member Sears.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you

          8  very much, Council Member Quinn.  Council Member

          9  Quinn, and this is for Dr. Edgar?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Butts.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Dr. Edgar

         12  Butts had suggested that perhaps looking into a

         13  comparable analysis of the Westchester model for

         14  applications that can be used in New York City is

         15  something that we should do.  As she spoke about it,

         16  I just thought about what my vision of Westchester

         17  is verses the New York City environment.  And I

         18  wondered whether the whole premise behind the IPM,

         19  is to sort of craft a unique application for an

         20  urban environment, and whether that would make a

         21  difference with what we are trying to accomplish

         22  with this legislation.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  I

         24  think there is a big difference between New York

         25  City and Westchester.  I think that we have rodent
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          2  problems that Westchester does not have.  We need to

          3  be able to use the rodenticides that we use.  We

          4  have, West Nile Virus, for example, we have a much

          5  more concentrated population, and much more

          6  potential for exposure.  That is why we have been so

          7  diligent in what we are doing.  Their population is

          8  more dispersed than ours.  So, I think there is a

          9  difference.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         11  Just to add to that.  I actually think that was very

         12  well said.  We do want to find a method that is most

         13  appropriate for an urban area.  And I think what

         14  Council Member Gennaro said before, about our

         15  wanting a more restrictive bill, I am not sure if

         16  that was what we were saying.  He had mentioned that

         17  because we were worried about carcinogenicity, and

         18  reproductive effects, that we would want a more

         19  restrictive bill.  I think that we would just want

         20  to craft it, so on one hand it gives some more

         21  latitude, while still protecting the population

         22  against these other potential effects. And I think

         23  that that would need some additional thought.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  And then,

         25  just finally, my question has to do with a personal
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          2  experience with the West Nile spraying that the City

          3  went through.  And, my concern is, I guess a public

          4  understanding of what that pesticide was.  And what

          5  impact it would have on the human population.  And I

          6  say that because there were trucks that actually

          7  sprayed, that came through neighborhoods.  And if

          8  you were not aware of the time that they were

          9  spraying, you could have gotten sprayed like me.

         10  And, I think a lot of the concern about pesticides

         11  is the fact that, you know, we are all given

         12  specific directions if you are just doing your local

         13  home, or your yard, or something like that. In the

         14  case of a City- wide administration of a pesticide,

         15  you do not have that control over the knowledge of

         16  how to deal with something like that.   And I would

         17  like to know that as part of our management we have

         18  a process of educating folks about what you do,

         19  should you happen to be walking to the grocery store

         20  when one of these vehicles come through your

         21  community.  And that is just food for thought.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  What

         23  we, I am sorry.  One of the things that we do, is we

         24  have an internal rule that says we must put a press

         25  release out 48 hours ahead of time, prior to the
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          2  spraying.  The permit that we have says that it

          3  needs to be 24, but we do is use 48 hours.  We try

          4  to use a time when the mosquitoes are flying, where

          5  we can get control, but when the least number of

          6  people are out.  If the temperature drops below 60

          7  degrees, the mosquitoes are not flying.

          8                 What we try very hard to do is to

          9  alert the neighborhood.  We have a community

         10  relations group, that sends people out to placard

         11  the neighborhood.  We were on the Ferry, for

         12  example, the Ferry that most of our applications

         13  were in Staten Island.  We had people on the Ferry.

         14  We had people in the grocery stores.  We had people

         15  in the shopping centers giving out documentation

         16  saying this is when we are going to apply the

         17  material.

         18                 Where the problem comes, is for

         19  example, if we are telling everybody we are going to

         20  spray tonight, I am just using it as an example.  We

         21  have gone through the process and we are telling

         22  everybody that we are going spray tonight, and it

         23  looks like it is going to rain, and part of our

         24  protocol is if it is a 50 percent chance or greater

         25  of rain, we do not spray.  If there is a temperature
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          2  that is going to go below 60 degrees, we do not

          3  treat.  And what happens is we move to the next

          4  night.  And that is what the press release says, but

          5  it is hard to get that message out.

          6                 And we do have a significant public

          7  health concern.  I mean, part of our job is to let

          8  people know, but the other part is, you know, when

          9  we are treating, but it is also to protect New

         10  Yorkers from West Nile.  I mean, last year, not in

         11  2004 but in 2003, we lost seven people to West Nile,

         12  we do not want that.  What we want to do is a have a

         13  balance where we protect people and use the least

         14  toxic, the best methods to accomplish that goal.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  I guess my,

         16  part of my concern would be, to be able to inform

         17  people of what to do if they get sprayed, because it

         18  sets off somewhat of a panic, you know.   Because we

         19  are not use to airborne pesticides at that volume.

         20  I mean, this truck was like, there was like a cloud

         21  on our block, and children were still outside

         22  playing, and so parents were not sure, you know,

         23  does my child have to take a bath immediately.  Or,

         24  you know, does this have any adverse impact on, you

         25  know, will it trigger my child's asthma?  Those are
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          2  the types of just practical questions that people

          3  have.  You know, should I have turned around and

          4  gone back home, as opposed to proceeding to the

          5  store to purchase something?  You know, those types

          6  of practical things.  Is there something that I

          7  could carry into a grocery store that could linger

          8  on the grocery shelf as a result of me walking

          9  through the mist of a pesticide.  Those type of

         10  practical things that most people would not know of,

         11  because it is not something you are accustomed to,

         12  is something that the public really needs to know.

         13  Other than the fact that it is going to be sprayed,

         14  if you should happen to venture out when the

         15  spraying takes place.  Because we were told to close

         16  our windows, but we were not told, you know, if this

         17  happens though, what you should do.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         19  Well I guess the good news is that we do not see

         20  many health effects from the spraying of West Nile

         21  Virus.  And we do tell people to call, in our

         22  literature, to call our poison control center if

         23  they do experience any health effects.  I mean, so

         24  the exposures that people are getting are not

         25  generally anything that would be something that
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          2  would cause health effects.  However, there are

          3  sensitive people, and we recognize that.

          4                 Clearly, we can consider doing

          5  something in terms of, you know, if you get sprayed,

          6  you know, you should wash off. It is not like an

          7  urgent thing, you do not have to do it right away,

          8  but in the event that that does happen.  So, we can

          9  bring back and discuss that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Just, before I

         11  call on Council Member Sears, if we could call the

         12  roll for Council Member Reed, who was across the

         13  street chairing his committee, and has now joined us

         14  to vote on Resolution 660.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Reed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Final vote on Reso.

         18  660, is now 7 in the affirmative, 0 in the negative,

         19  and no abstentions.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Thank you.  Now

         21  we have Council Member Sears, and I than I just have

         22  probably just two or so, wrap up questions.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you

         24  Madam Chair.  I just have one question.  And I

         25  recognize, Dr. Butts, all of the efforts that is
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          2  done to make this City a lot healthier.  Does your

          3  division, do you work with the Violations Department

          4  section of the Health Department?  That when you go

          5  out and spray and look at where those violations

          6  are.  For instance, you are talking about West Nile

          7  Virus, I think there probably is not a councilman in

          8  this City that could not show you pools of water

          9  that come from malfunctioning air conditions, that

         10  are in terrible violation of the health codes.  And

         11  I recognize that we are limited in the inspectors,

         12  but is there any connection between that part of the

         13  Health Department and yours?

         14                 Because I do think, that if there

         15  was, there would be a reduction of West Nile Virus,

         16  just by being in compliance with the law.  I am not

         17  mitigating what you have to do to do that, but this

         18  City has enormous violations in the Health

         19  Department that come from the misuse, broken

         20  equipment that cause pools of water.  I can walk on

         21  Madison Avenue, I can walk on Wyckoff Avenue, I can

         22  walk on Metropolitan Avenue and be on Gun Hill Road,

         23  and I can tell there is a pool of water anywhere and

         24  everywhere.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Yes,
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          2  Ma'am, thank you.  I think your point is well taken.

          3    First off, the control group for West Nile is in

          4  the same group for surveillance, and we do a huge

          5  amount of standing water complaints.  We go out,

          6  every standing water complaint we get, we try to get

          7  out and address it, and make the people get rid of

          8  it, or we send a crew out and get rid of it.  One of

          9  the problems that we have had is access. You have

         10  got an area that has been reported, let's say that

         11  you have a swimming in your backyard that you are no

         12  longer using, but it has got a half a foot of water

         13  in it.  You will not let us in.  We have to go

         14  through and get an access warrant, that takes time.

         15                 One of the things that we did, and

         16  you are perfectly right that is an area that we have

         17  addressed, we are going to continue to address, that

         18  is part of our Integrated Pest Management Program.

         19  We are trying hard.  We want to encourage people to

         20  call 3- 1- 1, to report standing water during the

         21  season. Right now there is no reason to.  When a

         22  report of standing water comes in, we go out and

         23  investigate.  If there are no mosquito larva in the

         24  water, you know, there are no immature mosquito in

         25  the water, than we do not treat it.  But we will
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          2  issue a violation to have the people mitigate or get

          3  rid of the problem.           It is one of those

          4  things, where that is part of our Integrated Pest

          5  Management.  We want people to call in 3- 1- 1. And

          6  the Council was very good to us in allowing us to

          7  issue a violation when we see a problem.  I mean,

          8  and that is something that the Council did that was

          9  great for us.  I wish we had it for rodents but we

         10  do not.  But we can actually- -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Let us work on

         12  it, you will have one eventually.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Yes.

         14  But we can actually go out and if you have got a

         15  problem on your property, we can issue, right than

         16  and there, a notice of violation, that will really

         17  force you to take care and to deal with the

         18  situation.

         19                 But we take every report seriously.

         20  But there are places that, you know, New York's big

         21  tires, there are places, that are very difficult to

         22  get to.  I wrote a very difficult letter in August,

         23  to all of the cemeteries in the City of New York,

         24  and asked them to prohibit the use of vases in their

         25  cemetery until October 15th.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  No, cause they

          3  accumulate water.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  My

          5  wife always tells me it is v- a- s- e, I always say

          6  vase.  But we prohibited the use of vases in

          7  cemeteries.  And I had some calls that were pretty

          8  sad from people who wanted to put flowers on their

          9  loved ones grave.  And we explained to them what the

         10  reason for that was, and they understood.

         11                 So, we are on top of that.  And if

         12  you have got some suggestions, we are listening,

         13  because that is Integrated Pest Management.  That is

         14  part of our program, and without addressing standing

         15  water, we are not going to succeed, we are going to

         16  have big problems.  And we are all over it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  When there is

         18  a violation in the Health Department, particularly

         19  pertaining to still water, do they, is there within

         20  the computer system, do they notify you?

         21  How do you know that that violation is there, that

         22  can be a big concern in terms of West Nile Virus?

         23  How are you made aware of that?  Let me ask you it

         24  that way.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  We are
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          2  made aware of it, generally, through 3- 1- 1.  That

          3  is the best way to get the complaint to us.  If

          4  somebody calls in a complaint it is a little more

          5  cumbersome, but we do respond to that.  I know that

          6  we have had some glitches.  I know that we are not

          7  perfect, but we are trying.  And we are going to try

          8  harder next year.  It is just very important that we

          9  deal effectively with standing water, and that we

         10  have a good larvaciding program.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Let me ask it

         12  this way. Would it be feasible, for you, to actually

         13  have a connection with the Violations Department,

         14  and categorize particularly that area of still

         15  water, so that you are made aware that?  The 3- 1- 1

         16  works, it does not work for everybody, and it

         17  certainly has its own difficulties, but it is a good

         18  system.  I can tell you that there are people that

         19  do not use 3- 1- 1, they see it and they walk away.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Yes

         21  ma'am, but please understand the Violations

         22  Department is us.  I mean we are the Violations

         23  Department.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  In terms of

         25  what?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  In

          3  terms of standing water.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Standing

          5  water.                             ASSISTANT

          6  COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  We have sanitary--

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So the

          8  complaints all come to you?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Yes,

         10  ma'am.  And we send people out.  We have a list of

         11  complaints that we address every day.  We send

         12  people out.  They look at the standing water. If

         13  there is a violation, a violation is written.  You

         14  know, if there is a violation the people are told,

         15  you get rid of it, or we will be back and you will

         16  get a fine.  You have to go to tribunal.  And the

         17  fines are minimum $200, you can have as much as a

         18  $2,000 fine.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  How have you

         20  dealt with the faulty air conditioners that leave

         21  pools of water?  What happens when there is a small

         22  merchant, who has got a very ineffective air

         23  conditioner?  It is a 100 degrees and 90 degrees.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  I do

         25  not know. That is not a specific example that I have
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          2  dealt with, you know, that I know of.  But I can

          3  find out how we deal with that and get back to you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Because I

          5  would think a good part in communities and very,

          6  very congested areas, and there are communities in

          7  this City and certainly in Queens, that all of the

          8  population is within a ten block radius, so to say,

          9  and I am exaggerating slightly, but to emphasize the

         10  impact of the density of people.  That happens to be

         11  a center for accumulation of water, so perhaps it is

         12  something that you may look at how you deal with

         13  that.  And I will follow- up with you.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  I will

         15  make a note of that and you will receive something

         16  from me on how we deal with that.  But I just cannot

         17  answer that question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I understand.

         19  I understand.  Thank you.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  But

         21  standing water is very, very important in our

         22  Integrated Pest Management Program.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         24  much.  Thank you Madam Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I just have one
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          2  or two quick things and than we have a final couple

          3  of questions from Council Member Reed.

          4                 Commissioner Leighton, on page two of

          5  your testimony, you state that "we do not have data

          6  to indicate what portion of pesticides used in New

          7  York City is applied by or on behalf of New York

          8  City agencies."  Are there any plans to try to get a

          9  handle on that?  It just seems like it would be

         10  useful information to have.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         12  Yes.  I am going to let Dan answer that question.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  Dan

         15  is actually do a lot of work.  I am trying to map

         16  and look at different information of pesticide use

         17  in the City.

         18                 MR. CASS:  Currently, licensed

         19  pesticide applicators in New York State have to

         20  report line item applications to the State DEC.  But

         21  the reporting of those things can happen either on

         22  paper, or using an electronic Excel spreadsheet.

         23  And it is ultimately the responsibility of the

         24  licensee to do that.  It is very difficult to gather

         25  the data centrally.  There is a repository for this
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          2  data at the State that is available in some reform,

          3  by zip code, but there is no way to tease out which

          4  are governmental applications and which are not.   And

          5  even despite our efforts to get the data at the line

          6  item, which tells us the address, and the particular

          7  chemical, the quantity, and the date, well first we

          8  have not been successful in getting that and we are

          9  trying a number of routes to do that.  Once we do

         10  get that data, it will be possible to look at

         11  addresses that are government owned as a clue as to

         12  what percentage are applied on government owned

         13  property.  But it is an imperfect process, at best.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And when did you

         15  think that you might get that data?

         16                 MR. CASS:  Well there is an

         17  application pending with the State and we are trying

         18  a number of routes to-- You may be aware that the

         19  State Regulation requires this reporting as among

         20  the most restrictive in the Country in terms of

         21  public access.  It is only allowed for public health

         22  studies.  So right now we are actually proposing a

         23  study that will allow us access to this data.

         24                 Now it is possible to try to get this

         25  data from agencies themselves.  And we have not yet
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          2  done that.  But there have been efforts to gather it

          3  within an agency.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well why don't we

          5  just ask all the City agencies whenever they use

          6  pesticides to send a form to DOH?   We would get a

          7  lot of, I mean it seems maybe a little simpler.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  We

          9  may not want to ask for all agencies--

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   You have got to

         11  move the--

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: --

         13  each time they do it of amounts.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   So, we could get

         15  quarterly notifications to DOH.

         16                 MR. GUNTHER:  I am Bram Gunther,

         17  Deputy Director of Forestry and Horticultural for

         18  the Department of Parks and Recreation.  Our

         19  pesticide program is on a vastly smaller scale than

         20  the Department of Health, so it is easier for us to

         21  track. But because of the DEC annual report, that

         22  Dan was talking about, I am able to in a central

         23  way, all the reports go through my office, and we

         24  sort them by product and chemical used, how often it

         25  is applied, and total amounts used.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I am sorry, Sir.

          3  All the reports for every agency, or just Parks?

          4                 MR. GUNTHER:  No, just the Parks

          5  Department.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

          7                 MR. GUNTHER:  Which, I started out by

          8  saying is on a- -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right smaller

         10  level.

         11                 MR. GUNTHER: - - significantly

         12  smaller scale so it is easier for us to do.  And I

         13  am tracking the Parks Department employees who are

         14  licensed DEC pesticide applicators. There are

         15  contractors that obviously, do work for us too, and

         16  I do not track that.  But I am able to track the

         17  employees who are licensed pesticide applicators for

         18  us, and so each year I have the total amount of

         19  pesticides used, by product, by quantity, and by

         20  number of applications.  And clearly, I can give

         21  that to the Department of Health.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So, it seems

         23  like, I mean we would not catch everything in this

         24  first idea, but it seems like if we asked all of the

         25  agencies, we could at least get something. Though it
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          2  does seem to me, like if there should be a way to,

          3  without being too cumbersome, to get it from the

          4  contractors, because like if you contract with the

          5  City to provide domestic violence services, you have

          6  to report to the agency on how many families you

          7  serve.  I would think there is similar reporting if

          8  we contract on you to spray pesticides, on how much

          9  you spray. It seems to me that we could get

         10  something with avoiding the DEC bureaucracy.

         11                 MR. GUNTHER:  I would add that there

         12  is provision in Intro. 329 that does ask for

         13  centralized recording keeping on this.  We think

         14  that would be for the most part a good thing.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, great.  And

         16  just before I call on Council Member Reed, I just

         17  want to say, to go back to Westchester for a second.

         18    I think that the agencies, and perhaps Council

         19  Member Clarke, might have misunderstood, my point is

         20  not that if it works in Westchester, therefore it

         21  will work here. Westchester is obviously different

         22  than New York, though it does have Yonkers which is

         23  not New York, but is an interesting kind of,

         24  microcosm for us to look at and expand from  You

         25  know, my point is if somebody to our north has done
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          2  it, and maybe even done more, we will figure out how

          3  much more after based on how read it et cetera, it

          4  is useful for us to go and interact with them,

          5  because they are a case study.  You know, we are in

          6  New York there ain't ever going to be a case study

          7  exactly like us. So that is the greatness of us, but

          8  that it is useful to take that and than as Council

          9  Member Clarke said, layer on the particular urban

         10  challenges that we have to add, or take away or

         11  modify from it.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:  I

         13  think that we would agree with that.  And we will

         14  also reach out to Westchester.  We have already, but

         15  have not been able to touch base.  But we will reach

         16  out to them as well.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes, and I think

         18  it fine that we do not have all of that information

         19  today.  This is the first hearing and there will be

         20  time to figure out and do that.  And the great thing

         21  also being New York, is that Westchester will

         22  probably want to come here, because than they can go

         23  to exciting restaurants and shows after the meeting.

         24    I am sure the meeting will be held here.

         25                 Council Member Reed.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you Madam

          3  Chair.  I again apologize for not being here.  I

          4  think this is very provocative conservation about

          5  something that is important to everybody and our

          6  health.  I am going to read the testimony here and

          7  try to be a little bit more up on it.  But I see

          8  some people from NYCHA, and I know that we did some

          9  work, I think, that was very useful up in East

         10  Harlem, specific to our asthma initiative, but using

         11  non- toxic roach abatement.  And all the evidence

         12  was that it was more effective and more economical.

         13  So I do not know if this has been a part of the

         14  testimony today, or if and what we are looking at

         15  this legislation, if that experience is being a part

         16  of the record.  It may have been.

         17                 MR. CASS:  Hello, I am Dan Cass.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  We started,

         19  well I was one of the people being involved with the

         20  beginning of the process, the Lehman Houses, right.

         21                 MR. CASS:  That is right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  We do not

         23  forget our public housing projects, as Council

         24  members.

         25                 MR. CASS:  Yes, it was both apart of
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          2  the testimony and models of what our thinking is

          3  around how to do good IPM. One of the things- -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Good IPM, I am

          5  sorry I have been to too many hearings today.  What

          6  is IPM?

          7                 MR. CASS:  Integrated Pest

          8  Management.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay, thank

         10  you.

         11                 MR. CASS:  One of the things that we

         12  pointed out is that some of the terrific successes

         13  of that program would be made more problematic by

         14  certain provisions of this bill that limit the types

         15  of products that would be allowed to be used without

         16  a waiver.  So, we have pointed out that we liked

         17  doing that project.  It has taught a lot.  It has

         18  modified NYCHA's approach to pest control, but that

         19  we would like to work with the Council to fashion a

         20  provision that allows us to continue doing that

         21  work.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So, briefly,

         23  when you say it has helped NYCHA modify, what has

         24  NYCHA done now?  Has it expanded that program?  I

         25  mean it was cost- effective, and it seemed to work
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          2  better.   So are we doing in all of NYCHA now? Did

          3  we just go back to the same old pesticide?

          4                 MR. CLARKE:  No, what we did, is we

          5  have expanded the pilot program to, you know, to

          6  actually MetroNorth, Wilson Whitehouses, as well as

          7  Bushwick, looking at different types of housing.

          8  And I just have to interject one thing.  The

          9  economic piece is one thing that we are struggling

         10  with.  Because the actual model for the pilot was

         11  more of a research model and what we are trying do

         12  is the things that we learned from this, is actually

         13  implement them into our standard operations and

         14  procedures, Our standard O&M type of program.

         15  Because one of the things that we did with the

         16  program, and we are doing in the pilot study, is in

         17  order to get a baseline, is a thorough cleaning of,

         18  you know, kitchens, bathrooms,- -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I remember we

         20  actually counted the number of roaches in the

         21  apartments.

         22                 MR. CLARKE:  Yes the number of

         23  roaches, it was labor intensive.  So, you know, the

         24  cleaning piece as far as an ongoing pest control

         25  program for NYCHA to clean the apartments, you know,
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          2  that really is not feasible for us.  But certainly

          3  the piece focusing - -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  It ought to be

          5  feasible in terms of when apartments are vacated et

          6  cetera, et cetera, shouldn't it?

          7                 MR. CLARKE:  Oh, absolutely.  And we

          8  do treat the apartments upon vacancy initially,

          9  right after moving.  I hope I answered your

         10  question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Partly, and I

         12  do not want to take up too much more time.  I just

         13  wanted to make sure that that was in the record,

         14  because I think, not only am I proud of what we are

         15  able to do, but I think it demonstrated that these

         16  things work, not just that it sounds cute, but it

         17  works.  So I am trying to understand if government

         18  is using those models to move forward.  I think I

         19  have gotten part of that answer today and we will

         20  talk more about it later.

         21                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Final question

         23  from Council Member Stewart.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I just want

         25  to go back to inspection.  Do you really do an
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          2  inspection of places like used cars, garages where

          3  you have parts, and the parts are laid up collecting

          4  water when it rains, and than maybe a haven for

          5  mosquitoes?   Is there any plan or any special

          6  program that you have for those places, because they

          7  are huge lots with, you know, car parts, and oil

          8  leak, and things like that?   The salvage, junkyard,

          9  whatever, do you have any program to deal with those

         10  places?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  We do

         12  not have program to specifically deal with those

         13  places.  If we see a place and it looks like there

         14  might be a problem, we will inspect it, actively,

         15  you know, we do not have to have a complaint.

         16  Normally, we would not inspect based on a complaint

         17  from somebody.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  You may not

         19  get complaints, but in that respect, but you have

         20  some of these places not too far from homes.  And

         21  you cannot do a general spraying.  But I just want

         22  to know if there someone, if there is an inspector

         23  that does go in and inspect to see if there is water

         24  accumulation, or anything like that, that creates

         25  mosquito breeding grounds?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  No,

          3  what we do is we encourage people, I mean the best

          4  eye in New York City are the citizens.  If the

          5  citizens see something, they are much better at

          6  giving us information and telling us where the

          7  problem is.  And we do publicize and ask people to

          8  make complaints.  We do not go around looking at

          9  different car places or mechanic places, but in the

         10  general scope of the way we do business, if we see

         11  what looks like problem, we will investigate it.

         12  Normally, what would happen is somebody would call

         13  in with a complaint that they see standing water.

         14                 You know, the system is not perfect,

         15  but it certainly works.  I spoke to a lady

         16  yesterday, and we ended up, we are going to look

         17  into her problem.  She had a sidewalk that was

         18  depressed where there was standing water.  I said

         19  ma'am there is not mosquitoes there now, because we

         20  have already had a freeze.  And we actually, I

         21  talked to NYCHA they are going to go out and if it

         22  has not already been investigated, they are going to

         23  look at it, because it is in a NYCHA property.  And

         24  this particular situation, was for a concern about

         25  the ice, somebody falling on the ice.

                                                            94

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 So people are very persistent on

          3  their complaints. And they want answers.  And we

          4  want the people to give us more complaints next

          5  year, because our standing water program, it is best

          6  implemented by complaints.  For us just to go out

          7  and wander the neighborhoods looking for water, or

          8  looking for standing water, is not efficient based

          9  on the staffing that we have.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  My only

         11  problem is that these large areas that, some of the

         12  areas, no one will visit, no one will have an

         13  opportunity to even see, the accumulation of water

         14  that is taking place there.  And it might be a block

         15  or two from housing.  And whether, you will not be

         16  able to say, well listen the mosquitoes are coming

         17  from there, unless you actually have an opportunity.

         18    I just wanted to know that we have someone, there

         19  are not a million such places, so at least, just

         20  like how we would visit the large developments to

         21  inspect about roaches and other things, we can

         22  inspect there to see if there is a breeding ground

         23  for mosquitoes.  I wanted to know if there is

         24  inspection.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  We are

                                                            95

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  going to have our lessons learned meeting

          3  internally.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  And

          6  that is one of the things I will bring up at the

          7  meeting and we will see if there is a way we can

          8  implement a program to look at this specific problem

          9  for next year.  The season is over now.  I mean we

         10  are not dealing with standing water right now.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  But

         13  the season is over.  What I will do is I will ask

         14  them and then, it is not scheduled yet, but it

         15  should probably be within the next 30 days, we

         16  should have that.  And I will send you a letter and

         17  tell you what we found out.  If that is okay with

         18  you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right.  That

         20  is okay. The other question that I have is does

         21  whom, owner need to have a permit to have a pool in

         22  the backyard?  Because I would like- -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Our colleague

         24  from Staten Island where there are more pools than

         25  there are in my district, is saying, yes.  So we are
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          2  going to go with yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And the

          4  reason why I am asking that if there is, than is

          5  there for renewal of the permit, if there is any

          6  such inspection to make sure that the pool is

          7  properly kept and water is not stashed there, and it

          8  is not being able to have mosquitoes?

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  (microphone

         10  not on)

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  (microphone

         13  not on)

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, not

         15  keeping it properly.  But I just wanted to know that

         16  DOH knows that these pools are there and do a

         17  little, what we call a pool inspection.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  DOH finds out

         19  from the elected official, this is how it works on

         20  Staten Island, frankly.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Or we

         22  find out from a neighbor who has called 3- 1- 1.

         23  And I will tell you that I have been here almost six

         24  months, we have had more problems with people who

         25  have pools in disrepair than anything I can think.

                                                            97

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  And some of these people absolutely do not want you

          3  on their property.  And we have to go through and

          4  get an access warrant. We have streamlined that

          5  program.  It is going to be a lot quicker in the

          6  future.  But the reason that we streamlined it, is

          7  because people who have these pools that are in

          8  disrepair will not let us on the property, we cannot

          9  go and force our way in. It is something that we

         10  know is there and if we could get these people to

         11  take care of the problem, it would help us

         12  tremendously in controlling West Nile and

         13  mosquitoes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BUTTS:  Thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you very

         18  much.  I want to now, first I want to thank you all

         19  for your testimony and we look forward to the

         20  follow- up meetings.  We will be back in touch.

         21  Next we are going to call up Judith Enck

         22  representing Attorney General Eliot Spitzer, and the

         23  AG's office is going to be commenting on, I believe,

         24  both 328 and 329.  And Wayne Schneider from the

         25  Westchester County Health Department, who is only

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  going to be testifying on 328. To some of the other

          3  questions that we have raised about Westchester we

          4  will have to follow- up on afterwards.

          5                 I also want to say that due to time,

          6  later on in the hearing we were going to have heard

          7  from Alice Yaker the Executive Director of SHARE,

          8  Self Help for Woman with Breast and or Ovarian

          9  Cancer.  She was not able to stay but has submitted

         10  testimony in support of all of the pieces of

         11  legislation we are hearing today.

         12                 Thank you.  And who would ever like

         13  to go first, go right ahead.  If the light is off,

         14  the mic is on.

         15                 MS. ENCK:  Good afternoon, not good

         16  morning.  My name is Judith Enck, I am a Policy

         17  Advisor for Attorney General Eliot Spitzer.  And I

         18  really want to thank you for holding this hearing

         19  and introducing these bills.  Hopefully some of you

         20  are co-sponsoring it, because this is a vitally

         21  important issue, in terms of peoples' health and

         22  environmental quality.  The Attorney General

         23  supports, both Intro. 329 and 328.  We believe that

         24  both initiatives represent a responsible approach to

         25  the use of pesticides, with the clear goal of
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          2  protecting public health in the environment.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Just hang on one

          4  second.  Just we can get--  great.  Okay go ahead.

          5                 MS. ENCK:  I am going to run through

          6  this as quickly as I can because I know time is

          7  short.

          8                 Huge quantities of pesticides are

          9  used in New York State, including New York City.

         10  Some of the pesticides used in New York include

         11  carcinogens, endocrine disrupters, chemicals capable

         12  of causing birth defects, and chemicals that can

         13  cause brain damage.

         14                 Children are especially sensitive to

         15  pesticides. Pound for pound, kids have greater

         16  exposure to pesticides than adults, because they

         17  live and play close to the floor, they breathe close

         18  to the ground.  And if your kids are like mine, they

         19  put their fingers in their mouth all of the time.

         20  Children's developing organ systems are highly

         21  vulnerable to pesticides.  Pre- natal exposure to

         22  pesticides and exposure during a child's early years

         23  are linked to an increased risk of cancer and to

         24  increased risks of injury to the brain and the

         25  nervous system.
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          2                 I want to emphasize that most

          3  pesticides used in New York are legal.  There are

          4  some instances where there are illegal use and in

          5  those instances our office and others will take

          6  enforcement action.  However, legal does not mean

          7  safe. Pesticides are by design poisons.  They are

          8  meant to kill pests. When the Environmental

          9  Protection Agency and the New York State DEP

         10  register pesticides, they do that based on a

         11  balancing process that addresses the effectiveness

         12  of the pesticide in killing the target organism, as

         13  well as the health and economic considerations.

         14  Thus, governmental sanction does not guarantee that

         15  human exposure to a pesticide may not cause harm.

         16  We believe it is critical that agencies and

         17  consumers learn about the hazards of the pesticides

         18  that they use, and take intelligent steps to reduce

         19  pesticide use whenever possible.

         20                 The two local laws that you are

         21  considering today do just that.  First, let me

         22  comment on the Pesticide Neighbor Notification Law.

         23  I attached to my testimony two booklets published by

         24  the Attorney General's Office.  One is a citizens

         25  guide to neighbor notification, which we published
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          2  years ago. And than an update which is a guide on

          3  implementation of neighbor notification, at the time

          4  six counties had it in place.  And essentially what

          5  we did was call the counties that passed these

          6  ordinances, talked to the enforcement staff that

          7  were implementing the law, talked to the public, and

          8  we give you a little summary of what is working,

          9  what is not working.

         10                 We also took some time looking at the

         11  legal challenges to County Pesticide Neighbor

         12  Notification Laws.  There were four challenges,

         13  primarily by pesticide applicators who did not like

         14  what the county legislators there did.  All of those

         15  challenges failed in court, and the report will give

         16  you the legal citations.

         17                 Our hope is that if New York were to

         18  adopt this, since there is already a litigation

         19  history, maybe, just maybe New York's law might not

         20  be challenged, but who knows.  But the case law on

         21  this is very encouraging.

         22                 The original Neighbor Notification

         23  Bill in the State Legislature would have implemented

         24  Neighbor Notification Statewide.  The State

         25  Legislature reached a compromise and decided rather
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          2  than doing this Statewide, they would leave it to

          3  the counties to decide, or in this case to the City

          4  to decide if they want to do that.

          5                 I want to emphasize one important

          6  point.  And that is if you were to adopt this, your

          7  ordinance needs to match the State language word for

          8  word.  You cannot have a comma off.  So that will be

          9  a pretty easy process to go through.

         10                 And we think the experience in these

         11  counties, we will hear more directly from

         12  Westchester, this has not been a burden,

         13  administratively, and I think the public has been

         14  very, very well served.

         15                 On the issue of Intro. 329, we think

         16  that would sensibly direct City agencies to reduce

         17  the use of pesticides where possible, beginning with

         18  the most toxic, those that are classified as

         19  Toxicity Category I by the federal Environmental

         20  Protection Agency.  When it comes time to implement

         21  this law, I think you will be surprised by the

         22  growing market of non- toxic pest control products

         23  that are available.  And beyond the category of

         24  products, the City will see the many benefits of

         25  utilizing Integrated Pest Management.
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          2                 In fact, all federal agencies are

          3  required by federal law to promote Integrated Pest

          4  Management.  And there are some large federal

          5  agencies, like the Department of Defense and the

          6  U.S. Parks Department that are doing a very good job

          7  with that.

          8                 Our office recently focused on the

          9  use of pesticides in public housing.  Again, we are

         10  particularly interested on the impact of pesticides

         11  on children.  The first thing we did was issue a

         12  report, which I will leave with the Committee, Pest

         13  Control in Public Housing.  We documented wide

         14  spread use of pesticides in public housing in five

         15  cities across the state.  We than issued a petition

         16  to HUD, asking them why they were not implementing

         17  Integrated Pest Management.  They quickly rejected

         18  our petition.  So this past September, Attorney

         19  General Spitzer, along with Attorney Generals from

         20  four other states, sued HUD to compel them to comply

         21  with federal law, that requires the use of

         22  Integrated Pest Management.

         23                 But, I think you guys can go first.

         24  And you can be a model for HUD by the time this

         25  litigation makes its way through the courts.  You
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          2  have got plenty of time to get a good model on the

          3  books here.

          4                 In terms, of this proposed Local Law

          5  328, we have two modest suggestions for amendments,

          6  some of the topics covered by our friends from the

          7  Health Department.  The first is that the bill

          8  requires agencies obviously, to use non- pesticide

          9  alternatives.  There needs to be some finding of

         10  efficacy.  We need to know that these non- pesticide

         11  alternatives actually work. So the agencies need

         12  some discretion on that topic.

         13                 And second, while the bill includes a

         14  waiver provision applicable to the pesticide use

         15  provisions in Section 17- 902, there is no similar

         16  waiver provision for the notification provisions in

         17  Section 17- 906, which deals with posting.  We think

         18  a pretty reasonable waiver provision can be crafted.

         19                 So those are our two very specific

         20  suggested amendments on that bill.  And other than

         21  that we are very encouraged by your interest in this

         22  issue.  This has tremendous potential to reduce

         23  people's exposure to pesticides.  And anything we

         24  can do to help in that regard, we stand ready to

         25  help.
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          2                 MR. SCHNEIDER:   Hello.  I am Wayne

          3  Schneider. Okay.  Wayne Schneider from the

          4  Westchester County Department of Health.  I am going

          5  to restrict my comments to the Neighbor Notification

          6  Law.  I will try to be brief also and cover three

          7  areas, the implementation, the enforcement, and also

          8  the benefits and limitations of the law.

          9                 To implement this law, the first

         10  thing we did was hire two sanitarians and one

         11  technician, a total of three personnel.  That

         12  personnel immediately went to work.  We organized

         13  six public seminars for the community, dealing with

         14  every aspect of law.

         15                 In order to get the word out about

         16  this, we got a list of certified pesticide

         17  applicators from the New York State DEC.  We also

         18  got a list of retailers from the phone book.  And we

         19  sent letters to everybody involved to tell them

         20  about these meetings.  We also issued a press

         21  release to the public to attend the meetings.

         22                 In terms of information provided to

         23  the public, we created a series of pamphlets that

         24  are attached to your handouts, one for every target

         25  group.  And we also had the copies of the law on our
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          2  web site, and anybody could have called us or picked

          3  it up at our office.

          4                 In terms of enforcement, for the

          5  contractors and homeowners we went on a complaint

          6  basis.  So in 2001 we had 30 official complaints,

          7  and numerous phone inquiries.  Out of those

          8  complaints, we only issued three notices of hearing.

          9    Mostly because the other complaints were involved

         10  applications that use exempt pesticides,

         11  bio-pesticides, or perhaps it just did not apply

         12  because of many of the other exemptions in the law.

         13  We also issued two warnings to the homeowners.

         14                 In 2002, the amount of complaints

         15  dramatically dropped, three official complaints,

         16  plus some phone inquiries, and we only had one

         17  Notice of Hearing issued.

         18                 In 2003, we also had three official

         19  complaints, but we did not issue any Notices of

         20  Hearing.

         21                 And in 2004, we have only had phone

         22  inquiries.

         23                 In terms of the retailers, the way we

         24  enforce upon them, we knew which stores potentially

         25  sold pesticides.  We inspected them, gave them
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          2  information, told them about the law and then we

          3  reinspected them.  Out of all of the stores we

          4  inspected, there was a total of only three Notices

          5  of Hearing issued.  So, for the most part, the

          6  retailers have been very compliant.

          7                 The benefits of the law:

          8                 One major benefit is that a lot of

          9  the contractors have felt that it was a little bit

         10  of a hassle to notify the public 48 hours in

         11  advance.  In order to avoid that they switched

         12  mostly to exempt materials.  So that is

         13  horticultural oils, horticultural soaps,

         14  biopesticides, and reduced risk pesticides. It just

         15  makes it easier for them.  And also it is just

         16  beneficial for the environment.

         17                 Another major benefit is that

         18  community members are informed of any pesticide

         19  application that is near them.  And it is a

         20  precaution, you know, as illustrated before,

         21  covering the pools, keeping the children inside,

         22  avoiding the area entirely.

         23                 There are some limitations to the law

         24  you need to be aware of though.  The law does not

         25  limit the types or amounts of pesticides used at
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          2  all.  It just gives a restriction of notification of

          3  that pesticide being used.

          4                 Earlier as mentioned, that the switch

          5  to granular is a positive, in some senses it is.  In

          6  other senses granular pesticides can be just as

          7  toxic as liquid pesticides, and some contractors

          8  have switched to granulars to avoid notification.

          9                 There are many exemptions to

         10  notification that you need to be aware of, such as

         11  golf courses, intern farms, and agriculture

         12  commodities.

         13                 No notification is needed to anybody

         14  that is more than 150 feet away from the site of the

         15  property.  And we have had some complaints that when

         16  more than 150 feet away, people still want to know

         17  about, but according to the law you do not have to

         18  do it.  Also, if you are across the street, no

         19  matter what distance you are away from that

         20  application, you do not need to be notified, just

         21  something to keep mind of.

         22                 One major thing, especially in New

         23  York City I feel this is going to be an issue, is

         24  that if pesticide is sprayed, let's say on the

         25  grounds of a condominium, nobody in that condominium
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          2  needs to actually be notified according to the law.

          3  The next door neighbors condominium, all the

          4  neighbors need to be notified, but nobody actually

          5  in that development needs to be notified according

          6  to the law.

          7                 So I think this law is very

          8  beneficial, but I think that also the Council would

          9  be well- advised to include an addendum to, not an

         10  addendum, but maybe an alternate law to protect the

         11  people of the site being sprayed itself.

         12                 I wanted to address briefly something

         13  that came up with New York City Health Department,

         14  as to which agency should enforce this.  Whether the

         15  Health Department is the right agency or not to

         16  enforce it, is up to the City Council, but I would

         17  suggest only one agency enforce it.  I know there

         18  was some talk about, you know, Parks doing some,

         19  Sanitation doing others, Consumer Affairs doing it

         20  for retail stores, I just think that adds a level of

         21  bureaucracy that will confuse the public and make

         22  the process a lot slower, that only one agency

         23  should be involved in every aspect.  And the Health

         24  Department has not found it difficult to work with

         25  every aspect of the law in order to implement it.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I just, on the

          4  point that you just raised, when Westchester, I

          5  guess the County Executive or the legislation

          6  whoever put this in place, was there a resistance

          7  from the Westchester County Department of Health?  I

          8  mean did they have some of these same concerns?  I

          9  ask because it might then be useful to have them

         10  dialogue with our Department of Health, if they had

         11  fears that were not actually realized.

         12                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  So are you asking if

         13  the Westchester County Department of Health had any

         14  concerns about the implementation of the law?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Right.  I mean,

         16  you heard, obviously, the DOH testified that they

         17  were not sure that they were the best people to be

         18  the enforcement agency.  And I was wondering if the

         19  Westchester Department of Health, if they expressed

         20  that same concern when you were adopting the law.

         21                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  Okay.  Our situation

         22  may be slightly different than the New York City

         23  Department of Health, in that we already had a group

         24  of people within the Health Department that dealt

         25  with spill issues, pesticide issues, hazmat issues.
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          2  So, that group- -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   We do too,

          4  actually.

          5                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  Okay.  So we were

          6  already prepared to deal with environmental issues.

          7  And we already had a group of people geared towards

          8  that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Would you agree

         10  that the Department of Health would be the right

         11  place?  Or who do you think the best enforcement

         12  agency is?  And do you agree that it should be

         13  housed with one agency exclusively?

         14                 You have to probably turn your mic

         15  on.

         16                 MS. ENCK:  Well in most counties

         17  enforcement is done exclusively by County Health

         18  Departments.  And that appears to work.  And in

         19  terms of multiple agencies, it all depends how the

         20  agencies get together, and you know, if there is

         21  clarity on where the buck stops.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Can I ask, what

         23  is your sense about, you know there was obviously

         24  concerns raised by the Department of Health, that

         25  prohibiting Category I and II Toxicity items, would
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          2  kind of eliminate some of the materials, I am

          3  paraphrasing, but that DOH feels they need to be

          4  able to combat pests and other problems in the City.

          5    Can you just tell us what your response is to

          6  that?  What you have seen in other places, or be it

          7  different from New York, but if you could enlighten

          8  us on that in any, from what the AG's office has

          9  seen?

         10                 MS. ENCK:  Well I think it makes

         11  perfect sense to phase out Category I pesticides.

         12  Those are the most toxic. Those are the ones that we

         13  are concerned about.  And you have a waiver process

         14  in the bill if there is a public health emergency.

         15  And I think what happens is when government leads in

         16  this area, it prompts people to look at

         17  alternatives.  The market for non toxic pest control

         18  today is vastly different than it was ten years ago.

         19    So I think the way you have your bill drafted is

         20  pretty sensible.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Council Member

         22  Sears has a question, I believe.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you

         24  Madam Chair.  As it relates to Intro. 328, to your

         25  knowledge have any of the State counties who opted
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          2  into this program, have they had difficulty really

          3  enforcing the law?  And if so, what are some of

          4  those areas that they have had these difficulties?

          5                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  I have not been in

          6  contact with the other counties that have

          7  implemented the law.  From our prospective we have

          8  not had much difficulty in enforcement. There is a

          9  little bit of difficulty proving what pesticides are

         10  being sprayed at any time.  It is the same

         11  difficulty that the DEC has when they go out on a

         12  pesticide complaint.  The pesticides are only

         13  present for a brief period of time, lets say one or

         14  two days, it can only be tested within that time

         15  period. So when a complaint comes in, if it has been

         16  already a day since a complaint came in, we have

         17  difficulty ascertaining the exact pesticide being

         18  used.   In that sense we have to rely on their

         19  reporting requirements to the DEC to determine

         20  exactly what they sprayed.  Other than that, there

         21  has not been much difficulty enforcing.  It is just

         22  knowing exactly what they sprayed, definitively.

         23                 MS. ENCK:  I think what you will

         24  find, is among the public people are surprised that

         25  this does not require folks to stop using
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          2  pesticides.  And a lot of times people want to, if

          3  they get this information and they have concerns,

          4  and this law does not stop the use of pesticides, it

          5  simply gives you a chance to get out of the way.

          6  You should expect a fair amount of work in the first

          7  year and then it seems to level off.

          8                 I spoke with a Rockland County

          9  Legislator the other day, he was a co- sponsor of

         10  the Rockland County Neighbor Notification Law, and

         11  she said to me that its just not been a big deal.

         12  And she had endless, endless, endless, meetings when

         13  it was first discussed, and the worst fears had not

         14  been realized at all.  But, certainly you need a

         15  competent local agency to be ready to deal with the

         16  phone calls, to educate the applicators, it is

         17  absolutely essential that a fair amount of resources

         18  and time go into that.  And to try to get their

         19  cooperation.  Every county has thrown up web sites,

         20  they have put out very clear educational material.

         21                 So if you do that up front first,

         22  that work up front, I think you are going to save

         23  yourself a lot of time and resources later on.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:   They all have

         25  to be licensed, don't they?  To my knowledge.
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          2                 MS. ENCK:  To apply restricted use

          3  pesticides, you are licensed by the State Department

          4  of Environmental Conservation.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And so when

          6  people apply for these licenses are they given this

          7  information that you are talking about, that they

          8  would then know that if they did otherwise they

          9  would be in direct conflict?

         10                 MS. ENCK:  I believe so.  Pesticide

         11  applicators take courses and they do get information

         12  from the Department of Environmental Conservation of

         13  what the different regulatory requirements are.  I

         14  mean it is only going to apply in the counties that

         15  have passed this, it is not across the board.  And

         16  then I think County Health Departments do their own

         17  outreach.

         18                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  Yes, we did our own

         19  outreach the first year, first and second year.  As

         20  illustrated in my little talk the amount of

         21  complaints have decreased dramatically.  We get very

         22  few complaints now, actually.  They are all over the

         23  phone and most of them can be dismissed, not

         24  dismissed but resolved right away, because the

         25  applicator used an exempt material.  So as far as
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          2  our outreach right now, is mostly on a proactive

          3  basis on the contractor.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And the exempt

          5  material is as effective as the materials that are

          6  not exempt?

          7                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  I do not have that

          8  knowledge.

          9                 MS. ENCK:  The reason why there are

         10  exemptions was this was a compromise that went

         11  through the State Legislature. And the legislature

         12  was primarily motivated by aerial applications.

         13  They wanted to make sure that there was not drift to

         14  abutting neighbors.  So after hearing from pesticide

         15  applicators, they decided to exempt granulars.  This

         16  is by no means a perfect law, but it is a start.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I see.

         18                 MS. ENCK:  And it is the only option

         19  you have because of State preemption issues.  Local

         20  governments are preempted from regulating pesticides

         21  unless the State legislature specifically gives you

         22  that authority, which they have given you here word

         23  for word.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         25  much.  Thank you, Madam Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Absolutely, thank

          3  you Council Member Sears.  Council Member Stewart.

          4  And for those of you who are not regulars at our

          5  hearings, it is Council Member Dr. Stewart.  So you

          6  might get a medical question or two thrown at you.

          7                 MS. ENCK:  Well I have got to catch a

          8  train.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:   You spoke

         10  about, is it five counties that has this law?

         11                 MS. ENCK:  I think at this point it

         12  is seven.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Seven

         14  counties.  Those seven counties, Dr. Butts spoke

         15  about, he absolutely needs Category I and II.  Do

         16  they use Category I and II of the pesticides?

         17                 MS. ENCK:  Different applicators, I

         18  mean the Pesticide Notification Law does not

         19  restrict what you can use.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right, but I

         21  just wanted to know about what they use.  Because I

         22  was somewhat concerned about the pesticides that we

         23  use that are not biodegradable, that stays a long

         24  time and gets into the system of every animal,

         25  every, the birds, whatever you name, even into the

                                                            118

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  plants, and the leaves of plants, whatever it is.

          3  And so it than eventually gets to people when they

          4  come in contact.  And I was concerned about that.

          5                 So I want to know, in those areas,

          6  those seven counties that you spoke about, do they

          7  use Category I and II, which we would like to

          8  restrict a little bit, or even eliminate? Do they

          9  use that?

         10                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  I can only speak for

         11  Westchester, and I do not have the figures, but I

         12  would say with reasonably certainty, that Category I

         13  and II pesticides are being used, not by City

         14  agencies, but by private contractors.  And when they

         15  do use those they have to notify the public of the

         16  pesticides being used, just so they can take

         17  precautions.  But we do not have any laws that

         18  actually restrict the use for the public of the

         19  types of pesticides that can be used, other than the

         20  EPA laws, which restrict which pesticides are

         21  allowed to be on the market.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So you are

         23  saying they do not use Category I and II, they use

         24  the other categories, but you have private people

         25  that does it.
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          2                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  I would say that we

          3  do probably have contractors that use Category I and

          4  II.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And, if New

          6  York City was to adopt these laws, in terms of

          7  notification, how would it effect the general public

          8  as compared to what is being done now?

          9                 MS. ENCK:  Well on Neighbor

         10  Notification it gives the public advance notice in

         11  some instances when pesticides used, so they can

         12  take some practical steps to make sure they and

         13  their families are not exposed.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, but I

         15  think they are doing that now.  What I am saying,

         16  how could this law make it better for New York City

         17  residents?

         18                 MS. ENCK:  Well there isn't advance

         19  notice now. So if you pass this Neighbor

         20  Notification Law, I mean, you know, right now,

         21  wherever you live, if your neighbor is contracting

         22  with a commercial pesticide applicator to have

         23  his/her lawn treated with pesticides, not granulars,

         24  but you know, things that could become airborne, you

         25  are not given advanced notice.  So when you leave
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          2  for work- -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  If it is

          4  done by the City you are given notice.

          5                 MS. ENCK:  But not by a private

          6  applicator.  So if someone contracted with a private

          7  company.  So if you were given this advanced notice,

          8  you might do things like close your windows before

          9  you left for the day, tell your kids to stay out of

         10  the way if there is a pesticide applicator truck

         11  there, you know, bring your dog off the run, or

         12  whatever the personal situation is there.  So

         13  Neighbor Notification just gives you a chance to get

         14  out of the way.

         15                 The other proposed bill, is very

         16  important because it allows City agencies to

         17  actually reduce the use of pesticides they are

         18  using, and reduce the most toxic pesticides first.

         19  So depending upon how much time you spend in a City

         20  building, in a City park, on a City street that is

         21  treated with pesticides, it can only improve.  You

         22  know, the less exposure the better.  And if there is

         23  less pesticides used, there is less exposure.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  A final question,
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          2  if you could tell us a little bit about what the

          3  Attorney General's role is in enforcement, in

          4  conjunction with whoever the County or the City

          5  enforcement agency is, or just overall.

          6                 MS. ENCK:  Well the law provides for

          7  concurrent enforcement authority between the State

          8  and the local government. We have not been involved

          9  in local enforcement.  And when it refers to

         10  concurrent, it would probably be the State

         11  Department of Environmental Conservation.  And they

         12  have done education and outreach.

         13                 So we have not been involved in

         14  enforcement, and are not planning to.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you both

         16  very much.  And as you can tell from the first

         17  panel, we will be back touch with both of your

         18  agency's and counties and counterparts.

         19                 Next I am going to call up three

         20  different sets of folks.  And I just want to say,

         21  that given some time constraints we are going to

         22  now, which is what we typically do when in a little

         23  bit of a time frame, after the governmental

         24  agencies, we move to a three minute clock for

         25  testimony, which I hope people were notified of
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          2  before, and if not I apologize.

          3                 The first group is going to be a

          4  group of five, so we are good on chairs.  Laura

          5  Haight of NYPIRG, who has been very helpful with

          6  this hearing; Dr. Robin Whyatt of Columbia Center

          7  Children's Environmental Health; Craig Wilson, New

          8  York League of Conservation Voters; Swati Prakash of

          9  West Harlem Environmental Action; and Joel Shufro of

         10  NYCOSH, if those folks could head on up.

         11                 After this panel we hear from Donald

         12  Burton the President of New York State Lawn Care

         13  Association.  After Mr. Burton will be our final

         14  panel of advocates.

         15                 And you can go in the order I called

         16  you.  You can arm wrestle for who goes first.  It is

         17  really up to you guys.

         18                 Laura why don't you, no you go ahead.

         19    I could not tell whose voice, go ahead Dr.

         20                 DR. WHYATT:  We have had a

         21  conversation here and I got elected, so.  I am Dr.

         22  Robin Whyatt.  I am Associated Professor of Clinical

         23  Environmental Health Sciences and Deputy Director of

         24  the Columbia Center for Children's Environmental

         25  Health, in the School of Public Health in Columbia
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          2  University. And I am testifying in favor of Intro.

          3  329 and Resolution 68. That does not mean that I am

          4  opposed to Intro. 328, it is just that this is not

          5  my area of expertise.

          6                 The views that I have expressed in my

          7  testimony are my own and do not reflect the views of

          8  Columbia University. However, these views that I am

          9  expressing arise from the research that we have been

         10  doing at the Columbia Center for Children's

         11  Environmental Health over the last six years,

         12  evaluating the extent of pesticide exposure among

         13  minority woman, and minority communities in New York

         14  City, and the effects of that exposure during

         15  pregnancy on the developing fetus.  And

         16  collectively, our findings underscore the need to

         17  reduce the use of hazardous pesticides and to

         18  substitute non- pesticide alternatives.  And I think

         19  that this legislation does a very nice job in moving

         20  us in that direction, and it will be technology

         21  forcing and a very important piece of work.

         22                 I am just going to very quickly,

         23  summarize these findings that have led me to this

         24  opinion.  We have now enrolled 600 mother/newborn

         25  pairs into this study.  And they have been enrolled
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          2  over the last six years.  We have found that, as

          3  others have testified today, pesticide is very

          4  widespread among women in these communities.

          5                 Eighty- five percent report that they

          6  use some form of pest control during pregnancy.

          7  Forty- six percent reported that they used the

          8  higher toxicity methods during pregnancy,

          9  exterminator sprays, can sprays and pest bombs.

         10  Contrary to what was being talked about earlier by

         11  the Department of Health, we have found that there

         12  has been no reduction in the use of higher toxicity

         13  pest control methods over the six years that we have

         14  been following the women, either among women that

         15  have been sequentially enrolled over that time, or

         16  among the same woman followed longitudinally, we are

         17  now funded to follow the women for about eight

         18  years.

         19                 These women are definitely being

         20  exposed to toxic pesticides during pregnancy.  We

         21  have been measuring the amount of pesticides in the

         22  woman's breathing zone.  During the third trimester

         23  all women are still exposed to at least three

         24  pesticides, chlorpyrifos, diazinon, and the

         25  carbamate propoxur. Some women have been exposed to
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          2  as many as eight pesticides simultaneously.

          3                 The pesticides are being transferred

          4  from the women to the developing fetus.  We have

          5  been detecting levels of these pesticides in between

          6  about 40 to 70 percent of the babies blood at birth.

          7

          8                 And most importantly, our study found

          9  that prior to the U.S. EPA ban on chlorpyrifos and

         10  diazinon, levels of those pesticides in the baby's

         11  blood were highly and adversely associated with the

         12  baby's birth length and weight.  And fortunately,

         13  the ban was very successful at reducing exposures

         14  and there no longer seems to be an effect on the

         15  baby's fetal growth.  But it is important to note

         16  that these effects occurred at what appears to be

         17  very low exposure levels.  The vast majority of the

         18  women in this study were exposed to these two

         19  pesticides, our estimates are, at levels that are

         20  way below what EPA has established as their

         21  reference dose.

         22                 Finally, consistent with other

         23  information that has been reported today, we have

         24  just completed a small pilot intervention study to

         25  see whether we could use IPM methods to reduce
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          2  pesticide exposure among this group women.

          3  Interestingly, that study was supported by the New

          4  York City Council Speakers Fund for Public Health

          5  Research.  And it indicates, that in fact, IPM has

          6  been successful at reducing the levels of pests in

          7  the home and also exposure to some of the newer used

          8  pesticides.

          9                 So based on that background I am very

         10  supportive of this legislation.  I think it will

         11  take a very important step of developing the types

         12  of methodologies and validating the types of

         13  methodologies that can move us away from the use of

         14  these higher toxicity methods.

         15                 And just in commenting on the whole

         16  discussion earlier with the Department of Health

         17  over Category I and II Toxicity pesticides, it is

         18  true that those are acute toxicity that does not

         19  necessarily mean they parallel chronic toxicity.

         20  Nonetheless, it seems appropriate to start moving

         21  away from the most acutely toxic pesticides.

         22  Certainly, seems also a reasonable step for the

         23  Committee to start considering adding in some of the

         24  other chronic toxicity health effects, so that if

         25  there is evidence that they cause chronic toxicity
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          2  that those pesticides, even if they are not acutely

          3  toxic, we should probably be moving away from them

          4  as well.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you very

          6  much.  I want to thank you and commend you for the

          7  study and the work you all have been doing.  You

          8  know, when it was first covered, I guess about a

          9  year ago now, in the Times, which maybe other places

         10  too, but the Times certainly did a big article on

         11  your study.  And we actually, it is on the top of

         12  our file on this matter.  So it was very,

         13  information of tremendous concern, but I thought it

         14  is very helpful to us in government, for it to be so

         15  well- documented and to be so kind of put out there

         16  in the public.  So, thank you.

         17                 MS. HAIGHT:  I will speak next.  My

         18  name is Laura Haight, I am Senior Environmental

         19  Associate with NYPIRG.  In the interest of time I am

         20  going to summarize my comments, but I have submitted

         21  extensive testimony and attachments.  And also, we

         22  submitted a sign- on letter that over two dozen

         23  public health professionals, environmental groups,

         24  and community organizations are submitting in

         25  support of this legislation.
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          2                 I am very pleased that this is

          3  happening.  Thank you so much for holding this

          4  hearing.  I truly appreciate Council Member Quinn,

          5  Councilman Gennaro, and their staff for all of the

          6  work that they have put into these bills.  And I am

          7  very excited that we are moving forward.

          8                 NYPIRG has been working on this issue

          9  for a long time.  In 1998, we released a report

         10  together with environmental advocates, which showed

         11  that pesticide use in New York City was topping the

         12  charts.  Statewide the pesticide use was highest

         13  here.  We were particularly concerned because there

         14  was large quantities of insecticides, and we know

         15  that a lot of this is being used in indoor

         16  residential settings.  And subsequent research by

         17  Dr. Whyatt and her colleagues, and the folks at

         18  Mount Sinai School of Medicine, have documented that

         19  these insecticides have indeed, caused permanent

         20  harm in children who are raised in these households.

         21                 So this is, made pesticides has

         22  become, far from an agriculture threat, an urban

         23  environmental health threat, and an environmental

         24  justice issue.  The City is limited in what it can

         25  do, because the State preempts local governments
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          2  from regulating pesticides.  So some of the

          3  questions that I have heard from Council members,

          4  may be skirting around the point of why are we doing

          5  this and not that.  There is very little that the

          6  City can do.  But these three measures are a lot of

          7  what you can do.  I am very excited about them.

          8                 The City can reduce its own pesticide

          9  use by City agencies.  And that is not

         10  insubstantial.  The City manages public parks,

         11  public schools, city office buildings, public

         12  housing, the City is a big landlord.  And there are

         13  some very exciting projects that the Health

         14  Department and NYCHA have been working on to pilot

         15  IPM that have been successful.  Mount Sinai's

         16  Growing Up Healthy in East Harlem Program, has been

         17  successful. These programs show that we can have

         18  pest free homes without poisoning our children.  And

         19  that is really, really important.            And it

         20  is not just New York City, San Francisco has passed

         21  a law phasing out its pesticide use.  Seattle has

         22  reduced its pesticide use.  Chicago and Toronto have

         23  reduced pesticide use in public housing.  There is a

         24  lot of great information out there that we can turn

         25  to, but especially right here in New York City of
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          2  successful programs.

          3                 On the Neighbor Notification Law it

          4  is also very important bill, NYPIRG has worked

          5  virtually, in every single county that has

          6  considered opting into this law.  You are going to

          7  hear some arguments from some of the pesticide

          8  applicators against this bill.  I can just tell you

          9  that we have some rebuttals in there, and I pretty

         10  much can respond to virtually any argument that is

         11  made.

         12                 The bottom line on Neighbor

         13  Notification is that it does not take away anyone's

         14  choice to use toxic pesticides on their lawns,

         15  including pesticides that can cause cancer to kill

         16  crab grass.  It does not stop them from doing that.

         17  But what it does is it gives your neighbor a

         18  fighting chance to protect themselves.  And it only

         19  covers those pesticides that are toxic and that are

         20  most likely to spray and drift.

         21                 And my testimony has more information

         22  about why that is so important, that people have the

         23  information they need to protect their families from

         24  exposure.

         25                 And finally, Resolution 68, calls on
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          2  the State Senate to pass the Urban Pesticide Bill,

          3  which I think helps fill in some of the cracks here.

          4    There is things that the City cannot do, but the

          5  State can do.  And that Urban Pesticide Board can

          6  look at those issues, make recommendations for State

          7  Policy Reform that can help New York City.  And

          8  also, requires pesticide applicators to be trained

          9  in non- toxic pest management, which is very

         10  important.

         11                 Bottom line is, if pesticides worked

         12  in New York City, you would not have a single roach

         13  alive.  New York City is dripping in pesticides.

         14  And what pesticides do is they temporarily suppress

         15  the problem, but they do not prevent it. They do not

         16  control it permanently.  And that is what we are

         17  finding in a lot of the programs here, that the non-

         18  toxic approaches are not only safer for families,

         19  but they actually permanently prevent and control

         20  the problem.

         21                 And with that said, thank you very

         22  much for your time.

         23                 MR. WILSON:  I will be brief.  Good

         24  afternoon.  My name is Craig Wilson, I am the

         25  Director of New York City Policy and Advocacy for
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          2  the New York League of Conservation Voters.  On

          3  behalf of the League, I am pleased to be here today

          4  to offer our full support for the two Introductions

          5  being considered before the Committee and the

          6  Resolution.

          7                 For each year that data is available,

          8  the list of the ten counties in the State that use

          9  the most pesticides, has included at least three of

         10  New York City's boroughs, and all five of the

         11  boroughs have appeared on the top ten list at least

         12  once. On average New York City accounts for 29

         13  percent of the State's pesticide use by gallons and

         14  18 percent by pounds.

         15                 We have heard from many people

         16  earlier this morning of the harmful effects of

         17  pesticides.  And we know that they are linked with a

         18  series of health problems including, seizures,

         19  neurological impairment, hormone disruption,

         20  reproductive disorders, and cancer as well.

         21                 Because of these serious health

         22  effects that can result from pesticide use, we

         23  believe that New Yorkers should definitely be

         24  empowered to know about the use of pesticides in

         25  their neighborhoods.  And also the City ought to do
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          2  its best to reduce the most toxic use of pesticides,

          3  and use non- toxic and least toxic alternatives.

          4                 And for those reasons we strongly

          5  support both of the Intros. 328 and 329.

          6                 If these bills are passed into law,

          7  it will show that the City Council is serious about

          8  protecting the citizens of New York from the dangers

          9  posed by toxic and carcinogenic pesticides.

         10                 The New York League of Conservation

         11  Voters fully supports the Council's efforts.  And we

         12  are ready to work with you to address the concerns,

         13  and the issues that have been raised, and see that

         14  these bills are put into law as quickly as possible.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 MS. PRAKASH:  Good afternoon.  My

         17  name is Swati Prakash and I am the Environmental

         18  Health Director for WE ACT for Environmental

         19  Justice, also known as West Harlem Environmental

         20  Action.  I want to thank you for inviting me to talk

         21  to you today.  And WE ACT is a 15- year- old

         22  Environmental Justice Organization based in Northern

         23  Manhattan.  We are also the community partner to the

         24  Columbia Center for Children's Environmental Health.

         25                 And as a result of this partnership
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          2  and our community organizing in Northern Manhattan

          3  around environmental health issues, we have come to

          4  that we have increasingly identified the use of

          5  toxic pesticides in all types of settings, indoors

          6  and outdoors, as a growing concern for residents, as

          7  well as, a real public health threat.  And in

          8  particular children are very vulnerable, because

          9  their rapidly developing nervous systems are more

         10  susceptible to the effect of pesticides.  And many

         11  people with asthma also find pesticides to be a

         12  potent trigger.

         13                 And so you have already heard from

         14  Dr. Whyatt about how the Children's Center has found

         15  that the use of two pesticides, chlorpyrifos and

         16  diazinon, are linked with reduced birth weight and

         17  birth length in the group of women who are

         18  participating in this study over the past six years.

         19    And it was a significant reduction in birth

         20  weight.  The most highly exposed, 25 percent of

         21  women in the cohort, had babies on average 6.6

         22  ounces less weights, or smaller, than the babies

         23  born to the women in the least 25 percent of the

         24  cohort.  And the EPA ban that went into place in

         25  2001, eliminated chlorpyrifos and diazinon from
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          2  widespread use, was so significant that the average

          3  birth weight in the cohort increased after 2001.

          4                 And so, you might, actually lead you

          5  to think, why should that matter to this group, now

          6  that chlorpyrifos and diazinon have been banned?

          7  Shouldn't we feel like we are safe from the most

          8  toxic pesticides?  And the important point here is,

          9  that at the time that they were being used, the EPA

         10  thought chlorpyrifos and diazinon were safe.

         11                 And the truth was that the science

         12  and the research at the time just was not good

         13  enough to tell us that it was as toxic, as we now

         14  know that it is.  And so this experience

         15  demonstrates the precautionary principle, which is

         16  the idea that when you do not know how toxic a

         17  substance might be, especially a substance designed

         18  to kill living creatures, it is probably better to

         19  be safe than sorry.  It is probably better to take

         20  precautions than wait for the harm to already be

         21  done.

         22                 And that is why the principles laid

         23  out in Intro. 329 in particular, makes so much

         24  sense.  Rather than, waiting to hear that the

         25  pesticides that we are using now, that are legal
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          2  now, wait for another five years and find out that

          3  they are more toxic than we thought, it makes more

          4  sense to just go ahead and use the least toxic, or

          5  even non- toxic pest control methods.

          6                 And the good news is, as we have

          7  heard from the Department of Health this morning,

          8  that Integrated Pest Management methods can be more

          9  effective than really highly toxic pesticides.  And

         10  part of the reason for this, as the findings from

         11  NYCHA and DOH study found, when you use IPM in a

         12  building wide approach, rather than depending on

         13  pesticide use from unit to unit, you are much more

         14  likely to have effective results.  And that is what

         15  this bill will encourage, is that building- wide use

         16  of less toxic pesticide methods.

         17                 Finally, pesticides can also be

         18  potent asthma triggers.   And I just had a couple

         19  words from a community leader, who works with us,

         20  Ms. Sarah Martin, who is President of General Grant

         21  Residents Association, General Grant Public Housing

         22  in Harlem.  And she notes that, and I just wrote

         23  this into my testimony.

         24                  "I am a chronic asthmatic.  I used

         25  to have problems while they were spraying, it would
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          2  set off my breathing. It wasn't chronic, but I knew

          3  I couldn't take any chances on having a thing around

          4  that would give me an attack.  When the exterminator

          5  would come around, giving a few days notice before

          6  they sprayed, I would let them know not to spray in

          7  my unit.  I would not have them spray that in my

          8  apartment because it would affect anyone who has

          9  respiratory problems.

         10                 I think that this kind of spraying

         11  should be more under control.  Anything that would

         12  help reduce any substance in your home that could

         13  affect your breathing or your respiratory system,

         14  anything that can help you, that is what the City

         15  should do.  There is a way to reduce that risk, and

         16  we should be doing that.

         17                 I would be more comfortable with

         18  Integrated Pest Management methods.  I would let an

         19  exterminator in who was using those less toxic

         20  substances, especially ones without a strong odor."

         21                 And so, her experience just points

         22  out also, the fact that, when you have less toxic

         23  pesticides being used, you are more likely to have

         24  people participating in building- wide

         25  extermination.  And it also enables those people who
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          2  do not have the ability to opt out, including

          3  children to be better protected.

          4                 So, I will close just by thanking and

          5  reiterating my support for both bills and the

          6  Resolution.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  Go

          8  ahead.  Is the light off?  There you go.

          9                 MR. SHUFRO:  My name is Joel Shufro,

         10  I am the Executive Director of the New York

         11  Committee for Occupational Safety and Health, a non-

         12  profit organization composed of 200 local unions and

         13  400 health, legal, and medical professionals, and

         14  safety and health advocates dedicated to every

         15  worker's right to a safe and healthful job.  We have

         16  a 26- year history of providing safety and health

         17  training and technical assistance to working people,

         18  union members, community, and public health

         19  organization.  And we are founded on the principle

         20  that work place injuries and illnesses are

         21  preventable.

         22                 We are here to support the

         23  legislation under consideration.  We want to extend

         24  our congratulations and thanks to member of the

         25  Committee for holding this hearing and moving

                                                            139

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  forward on this legislation.  I also want to

          3  apologize, as I read my testimony this morning,

          4  after for the first time having written it in the

          5  middle of the night, last night, I see that some of

          6  the sentences rival those of in length of William

          7  Faulkner, not necessarily in quality, but so I

          8  apologize.

          9                 I would like to use what little time

         10  I have to talk about Intro. 329.  NYCOSH strongly

         11  supports programs requiring the reduction of the use

         12  of toxic substances.  We believe that such an

         13  approach is good public health policy, and reduces

         14  the possibility of terrorists targeting facilities

         15  which produce or store extremely hazardous

         16  substances.  Requiring the City and its contractors

         17  to evaluate the toxic effects of the pesticides and

         18  the effects of these chemicals on people who

         19  disperse them, and who are exposed to them, City

         20  employees, agency workers, is a very important

         21  initiative.

         22                 Now, while we support the thrust of

         23  this legislation there are the following issues that

         24  we have.

         25                 First, the notification section.  We
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          2  believe that is extremely important and it is a very

          3  strong section that you have written in the law.

          4  But that is only half of the story. For employees

          5  who work in the agencies, the information is only

          6  good if they can than be removed, or take

          7  appropriate preventive action when the pesticides

          8  are being applied.

          9                 And I tell you that in the real

         10  world, and I am speaking here from the perspective

         11  of members of District Council 37, who I have talked

         12  to this morning about what their members experience

         13  when pesticides are applied while their members are

         14  sitting at their desks.  This is very important that

         15  they need to have some sort of protection, or

         16  ability to move, or be relocated when pesticides are

         17  being applied.  Because it is not the case that

         18  pesticides are applied on Friday night at 5:00, and

         19  than have a chance to disperse over the weekend.

         20  They are applied during the working day while people

         21  are working at their desks, in some cases, not

         22  always, some cases.

         23                 Secondly, we believe, and actually

         24  this is also true, I have similar reports from

         25  District Council 1707 in Daycare Centers.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Joel, I am sorry

          3  you are going to need to wrap up.

          4                 MR. SHUFRO:  Okay, quick.  Two

          5  sections that we think are really important to be

          6  clarified.  Who determines when a pesticide

          7  alternative is available?  Is it left up to the City

          8  agency or the contractor to determine?  What are the

          9  criteria that need to be applied?  If it is the

         10  contractor who makes the decision, is it the

         11  contractor who also makes the decision about which

         12  pesticide has the least acute and chronic toxic

         13  effects? Again what are the criteria?

         14                 We believe that these decisions

         15  should not be made by the contractor or the various

         16  City agencies, but should be made by the New York

         17  City Department of Health.  And at a minimum

         18  contractors must be required to file a form with the

         19  Department of Health outlining the various options

         20  considered and the reasons for choosing specific

         21  substances.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  Let

         23  me just say, Joel we should set up a meeting for you

         24  to meet with the legal counsel to this Committee and

         25  the Environmental Protection Committee, who both
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          2  worked on the bill, and will definitely take your

          3  suggestion on how to tighten the bill and make that

          4  part of the negotiation process with the Office of

          5  Legislative Affairs.

          6                 MR. SHUFRO:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I am

          8  sorry to rush everybody, we have a couple more folks

          9  to hear from and we have a committee coming in.  So,

         10  next we are going to hear from Donald Burton,

         11  President of the New York State Lawn Care

         12  Association. Is he still here?  Okay great.

         13                 And after, Donald will be a panel,

         14  Dr. Barbara Brenner; Joel Kupferman; Ajamu Sankofa,

         15  I am sorry, I probably just butchered your name; and

         16  Barry Beck or Ron Ross.  So that will the group

         17  after this, and those will be or final witnesses.

         18  Why don't you go right ahead, Sir.  You will need to

         19  speak to the staff if you have questions about

         20  whether you have been signed in or not.  You will

         21  have to speak to the staff, this witness is going to

         22  testify, so you should speak to the staff.  Go

         23  ahead, no you should speak to the staff and then we

         24  will figure it out.  Go ahead.

         25                 Identify yourself before you start.
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          2                 MR. BURTON:  I am Don Burton, I the

          3  President of the New York State Lawn Care

          4  Association.  And I am also here on behalf of the

          5  New York Alliance for Environmental Concerns an ad

          6  hoc of New York State Citizens for Responsible

          7  Environmental Policy, and also for certified

          8  applicators, these are lawn and tree applicators

          9  throughout the state, and the sediments of millions

         10  of do- it- yourselfers in New York.

         11                 The issue here is a tough one.  And

         12  granted I am the last person to commit, the first

         13  person to come in and offer really a shocking

         14  difference of what pesticides are.  And I am not

         15  going to get into that because I have given to each

         16  of the 53 Council persons, back in June, a packet

         17  that ran about 50 or 60 pages with our

         18  argumentation, supporting documents, or what have

         19  you.  And at this point here, besides the statement,

         20  that I am not at the same time, in interest, of what

         21  you folks have to deal with on your time schedule,

         22  not to go through with that, and the Attorney

         23  General's from our prospective, in response to him

         24  in regards to how he views pesticides and 48- hour

         25  notification should be adopted.
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          2                 I represent a business, as a matter

          3  fact, an industry that does now about six billion

          4  dollars in New York State.  In the applicator

          5  portion of this we have over 43,000, as a matter of

          6  fact, of people working.  So this is of great

          7  concern to us.

          8                 As a point here, and trying to

          9  capsulate this whole issue of pesticides and getting

         10  into it, people say the less the better, fine, and

         11  IPM is great, that is true too.  But the fundamental

         12  cause is a tough one to deal in New York City, that

         13  basically pesticides are not all that bad,

         14  particularly if they are used in the intended

         15  purposes.  And for example here, we have a number of

         16  pesticides that are actual medicines.  For example,

         17  strep throat, strep throat I think we still use

         18  streptomycin as a material to deal with that.

         19  Streptomycin coincidently happens to be a turf

         20  fungicide.  Warfarin which is a very common material

         21  to use for rodents around the house, is likewise a

         22  blood thinner.  Coumadin, I may be wrong about the

         23  pronunciation, but it is the primary one used for

         24  vein thrombosis and others.

         25                 To try and put another cap on in
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          2  regard to this whole issue, maybe a little

          3  difficult.  What I am saying here, in blunt, and to

          4  keep you longer, is this, if you folks believe the

          5  stories that you have been hearing, the isolated,

          6  anecdotal, non verified studies, that are coming

          7  through about certain aspects of potential pesticide

          8  poisoning, what have you, and this constant

          9  reverberation, is what is being accepted as the

         10  Gospel truth, without thoroughly getting into this

         11  matter.  And I am speaking now more specifically to

         12  the Neighbor Notification Law on pesticides, we

         13  would be doing a disservice.  We would be saying, in

         14  effect, we would be saying in effect, that

         15  environmental activist groups, people have political

         16  agendas, and what they have been saying should be

         17  taken as the truth.  And we are going to ignore the

         18  preponderance of regulatory authority, the science

         19  and the universities from the companies.  As a

         20  matter of fact, not too far from here, the United

         21  Nations, there studies, countless studies dealing

         22  with these materials, where the pesticides are

         23  saying they are of no value.

         24                 That is in effect what is going on

         25  here.  We are saying the science, the reputable
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          2  authorities, and there is a tremendous amount of it

          3  out there, is of no relevance.  We know pesticides

          4  better than they do.  And just to accentuate the

          5  point, and finish up here, in our industry for

          6  professional applicators we get 10,000 times the

          7  amount of exposure from our work activity than our

          8  customers, 10,000 times.

          9                 Now let me just bore you with one

         10  other little factor, in studies that have been going

         11  on since the 1940s and 1950s, and accentuated since

         12  the late 1950s and early 1960s for applicators and

         13  farmers dealing with these products, and by the way

         14  many of these products are getting better and there

         15  is new chemicals coming on stream, but going back to

         16  the older products, they have found and also viewing

         17  their families and the offspring, we happen to be

         18  the healthiest people in the United States as a

         19  cohort group.  We are living the longest and we have

         20  less incidents of cancer.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Sir, if you could

         22  set up.  If you want to submit any of the reports

         23  and science beyond what you have given us today- -

         24                 MR. BURTON:  It is there.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   Okay, terrific.
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          2  Thank you very much.  We are now going to call up

          3  four folks.  Two in support, two I think in

          4  opposition.  I just want to confirm that, five folks

          5  actually, Barry Beck and Ron Ross, neither of them

          6  are here.  And we are going to do our best to get

          7  through all five people.  We may have to cut a

          8  little bit when the other committee shows up that is

          9  for this room.

         10                 So we are calling up Dr. Barbara

         11  Brenner, Joel Kupferman, Peter O'Connell, Gil Bloom,

         12  and Bill Murawski.  If why don't as, Dr. Brenner and

         13  Joel why don't you guys just start while the other

         14  folks work their way up, if people do not mind

         15  moving.  Thanks, sorry about that I just wanted to

         16  keep it going. Go ahead, Doctor.

         17                 DR. BRENNER:  I am Barbara Brenner

         18  and I am the Principal Investigator of a study

         19  called Growing Up Healthy in East Harlem, that

         20  demonstrated the effectiveness of Integrated Pest

         21  Management.  I am Assistant Professor at the Mount

         22  Sinai School of Medicine, in the Department of

         23  Community and Preventive Medicine, and I direct

         24  community relations for the Medical Center.

         25                 We are very concerned, and I think
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          2  Councilman Reed mentioned, in East Harlem we have a

          3  huge asthma epidemic.  So, that really drew

          4  attention to what were some of the causes and

          5  pesticide spraying was one that was identified.  But

          6  at Mount Sinai, we were equally as concerned about

          7  the longer term neuro-developmental effects,

          8  particularly when the exposures are to pregnant

          9  woman and children.

         10                 So, I am speaking today on behalf of,

         11  in support of both Intro. 328 and 329, as well as

         12  the Resolution.  But what I would like to do is just

         13  cut to exactly what we found in our study.  Most of

         14  everything else has been said by others, as far as

         15  what is IPM.  It does vary.  It is a different model

         16  than the monthly, or occasional visit by the

         17  exterminator in the home.

         18                 Now our study, looks specifically at

         19  pesticide exposure in eliminating cockroaches in the

         20  home.  So, very quickly.  We undertook an

         21  intervention study with 131 East Harlem families in

         22  collaboration with two health centers, Settlement

         23  Health and Boriken Health Center.  Women were

         24  recruited from those centers when they were

         25  pregnant.  The majority of the families were
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          2  Hispanic, primarily Mexican and Puerto Rican, who

          3  lived in private tenement buildings, often in

          4  disrepair. However, significant minority lived in

          5  New York City public housing.  We measured baseline

          6  cockroach levels in each household.  Seventy- five

          7  percent of the households had significant cockroach

          8  and mice infestation, 75 percent. Approximately, 60

          9  percent in both groups reported that pesticides had

         10  been applied in the home during their pregnancy

         11  either by an exterminator or by themselves.  So we

         12  know the scope of the problem.

         13                 Our results demonstrated, if we

         14  compared a control group that we gave no

         15  intervention to, to a control group that got a very

         16  concentrated IPM intervention, a decline in

         17  infestation of over 50 percent, after six months the

         18  infestation went from 80 percent to 39 percent.  And

         19  there are other ways that we measured this as well.

         20                 So, the cost issue has come up.

         21  Many people have said, well this is all very nice,

         22  you have been able to demonstrate this in people's

         23  homes.  We think it is applicable to whole

         24  buildings, including City agencies.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Doctor, if you
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          2  could sum up because we have the next hearing

          3  waiting.

          4                 DR. BRENNER:  We found that the cost

          5  is not as great.  It is similar if you spread the

          6  costs over this model differently.  They are very

          7  similar to what it costs to spray chemical

          8  pesticides.  And I have that cost stated in my

          9  testimony.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  And

         12  there will be a second hearing, so we can have folks

         13  back than.  Joel why don't you go ahead as quickly

         14  as you possibly can.

         15                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  Okay, this is five,

         16  six years worth of work down to a minute or two.  I

         17  just want to say that we are the ones that actually

         18  are in- -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   ID yourself.

         20                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  I am sorry.  Joel

         21  Kupferman, I am the Executive Director of the New

         22  York Environmental Law and Justice Project, and the

         23  Environmental Council to the Uniform Firefighters

         24  Association.  I just want to say we are the ones

         25  that brought a law suit, and we are still in federal
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          2  court, now over the West Nile virus spraying that

          3  the City Health Department conducted.

          4                 I just want to say first, that they

          5  used malathion.  And they told us at the time that

          6  it was safe.  We discovered in the Mayor's Anti-

          7  Terrorist Handbook, that one of the substances that

          8  terrorists used was malathion.  When we confronted

          9  the Mayor, this is Giuliani at the time, he said

         10  this is a different type.

         11                 The City then went on to use anvil 10

         12  plus 10, that Jessica Leighton and the Health

         13  Department said, is basically very, very safe.

         14  Study after study has shown that it is not safe.

         15  Not only that, it is not just what the label says,

         16  Toxicity, it is how it is applied.  And we charge in

         17  our law suit that they definitely over- sprayed New

         18  York City, Manhattan, Staten Island, and all of the

         19  boroughs.

         20                 Many, many residents came to us.  And

         21  more importantly, besides the residents, the PBA

         22  came to us.  At one time if everyone remembers, they

         23  closed Central Park, to the civilians.  What they

         24  did do is they lined up all the police officers in

         25  their short sleeve shirts, and they proceeded to be
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          2  sprayed.  They brought in the Environmental Law

          3  Project to speak to them to find out what happened.

          4                 Jessica Leighton said, that there has

          5  been no effects of the spraying and that they are

          6  doing studies now.

          7                 A.  In 1999, when people called up

          8  the poison control center, the poison control center

          9  told people that there is no way that there could be

         10  an adverse effect to pesticides. And they did not

         11  even take people's reports.

         12                 B.  We had cases of the six workers

         13  that sprayed for Clark Environmental Mosquito, that

         14  was paid over $10, $20 million, by the City.  When

         15  we pushed DEC and EPA to investigate, they ended up

         16  giving a million dollar fine against Clark

         17  Environmental Mosquito.  This was a direct contract

         18  from the City of New York.  In the beginning of the

         19  Spring season, the Department of Health said that

         20  they were aware of all the activities that Clark was

         21  doing.  When the OSHA violations were issued, the

         22  City Health Department backed off and said they did

         23  not know.

         24                 This was one of the master spraying

         25  programs, I can just imagine all the smaller
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          2  programs.  And they told you here today, that they

          3  were not even aware of who is spraying, and they

          4  cannot even give you a total, which I think goes

          5  against any type of financial considerations that

          6  City has in place.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Joel if you could

          8  just sum up.  I am sorry.

          9                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  What we are saying is

         10  we really support this law, but there is no teeth in

         11  it.  The big exemption that you should really be

         12  concerned about, when they say it is a health

         13  emergency, you really have to come up with some

         14  checks and balances, what they can do.  And we also

         15  make sure that the Health Department is watched, and

         16  also all the contractors that the City uses have

         17  some type of penalty system in place.  And that this

         18  be full of a lot more transparency and a lot more

         19  input by the workers.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So, Joel why

         22  don't you, before you leave, before this is over

         23  just grab Gelvina and we will make sure that you can

         24  set up a time to meet with the staff to talk about

         25  your suggestions.
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          2                 MR. KUPFERMAN:  I just want to state,

          3  really, really, the City Health Department gave you

          4  many, many mis truths.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So, you will go

          6  through that with the staff.  Sir, why don't you go

          7  right ahead.

          8                 MR. O'CONNELL:  Thank you very much.

          9  My name is Peter O'Connell, I am Legislative Counsel

         10  to the New York State Pest Management Association.

         11  I have copies of our written testimony here and I

         12  will not touch on it at all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   We are also

         14  happy to meet with you and your organization as

         15  well.

         16                 MR. O'CONNELL:  We will take you up

         17  on that opportunity, if you do not mind.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Absolutely.  We

         19  will get sure that get their cards.

         20                 MR. O'CONNELL:  I think one thing

         21  that I would like to possible suggest is that maybe

         22  329 is a distraction.  You have heard so much today,

         23  about how effective IPM is, we totally endorse the

         24  IPM method.  Perhaps a better way to go about this

         25  problem is to create an inter- agency IPM task
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          2  force, where all of the City agencies, you see there

          3  is great success in the Department of Housing

          4  already.  I can tell you that also, the schools are

          5  very much into IPM.  And if all of the City agencies

          6  would buy into this, it could eliminate a lot of the

          7  problems that you are trying to address in Intro.

          8  329, and possibly in a way that you have a lot more

          9  flexibility.

         10                 To set these programs up, may I

         11  suggest, that there is a Cornell Community IPM

         12  Program, which can help do this. And there is just a

         13  wealth of information out there.  We would be more

         14  than willing to participate.  And with that I will

         15  turn it over to Gil Bloom, who is the President of

         16  the Pest Control Association, also an entomologist.

         17  He has a business here in New York.  He is an

         18  educator, I understand that even Dr. Butts, who

         19  spoke earlier today is in one of Gil's classes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And his mother is

         21  the Queens Delegations Appointee to the Health and

         22  Hospitals Corporation Board.

         23                 MR. BLOOM:  So, I will, that solves

         24  that answer.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  There you go, but
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          2  he is going to move quickly too.  Bless you all,

          3  thank you.  I do apologize, the Administration,

          4  sometimes we just go on and on, but there will a

          5  second, we all of us together go on and on.  There

          6  will be a second hearing and there will be meetings

          7  in between now and then.  Go ahead, Sir, sorry.

          8                 MR. BLOOM:  Gil Bloom, President New

          9  York Pest Management Association.  As a teacher it

         10  is hard to go quickly. Quickly going through the

         11  highlights of our presentation, which is available

         12  here.  I would like to say that in short, pesticides

         13  that are used today for the control of structural

         14  pests are far less toxic to non- target organisms

         15  then those used in past 20 or even five years ago.

         16                 In regard to Inter- agency Pest

         17  Control Committee, we are concerned that the

         18  composition of the Committee does not appear to

         19  contain the types of representatives that should be

         20  passing judgment on pesticide use.  At the very

         21  least, there should be an urban entomologist, and a

         22  Committee representative from Cornell's Community

         23  IPM Program, who studies and makes recommendations

         24  for reduced pesticides.

         25                 In regards to the Urban Pesticide
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          2  Bill, this is an example of the good intentions, but

          3  may not achieve a desired result.  To invest, we

          4  support the investigate the selling of usage of

          5  industrial strength pesticides in urban areas, and

          6  the step up of enforcement of restriction of retail

          7  sales to the public and homeowners.

          8                 Unfortunately, though there is little

          9  to achieve these goals as it appears to target the

         10  Pesticide Reporting data that is filed with DEC

         11  professional applicators.  And the bills

         12  particularly concern that would provide urban

         13  pesticide boards with privileged data that is

         14  currently available to accredited legitimate

         15  researchers only.

         16                 To be true to its purpose, it needs

         17  to address the most egrets examples of pesticide

         18  abuses, which are committed by building

         19  superintendents and tenants who take pest control

         20  into their own hands.

         21                 In summation, where as the bill

         22  focuses on the harmful nature of pesticides, we also

         23  believe that there should be someone examining the

         24  harmful nature of pest infestations. Urban asthma is

         25  reaching epidemic proportions, and is linked to
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          2  cockroach allergens.  Diseases such as Hander

          3  (phonetic) virus, West Nile virus, are diseases

          4  unheard of in New York City less than ten years ago.

          5    There have been documented reports of Lyme Disease

          6  in New York City.  And this is not to mention, the

          7  quality of life, pests, such as bed bugs, which are

          8  currently sucking the blood out of our citizens and

          9  visitors.

         10                 Even in our increased efforts in rat

         11  wars, our City remains infested with these creatures

         12  of the night. Therefore, we feel that as

         13  professionals a thorough examination of these pests.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Sir, I am sorry,

         15  if you can wrap, we literally, the committee is at

         16  the door.

         17                 MR. BLOOM:  One more sentence.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

         19                 MR. BLOOM:  Along with these

         20  diseases, be a part of any bill, that studies pests

         21  and pesticides.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you very

         23  much and I am sorry to rush you, but Bill if you

         24  could give us one minute at the most.

         25                 MR. MURAWSKI:  Real quick.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Say your name.

          3                 MR. MURAWSKI:  Bill Murawski, I am a

          4  Political Activist on the Westside.  I appear before

          5  you today on behalf of Grassroots Environmental

          6  Education, Steven Tvedten and myself. Grassroots

          7  Environmental Education provided this DVD Children

          8  at Risk, it is very important to watch.  And here is

          9  a book by Steven Tvedten, The Bug Stops Here.  It

         10  can be downloaded free, all safe alternatives, no

         11  poisons.

         12                 Steven Tvedten and I visited the

         13  Department of Education and also the Housing

         14  Authority last year, and he offered his services for

         15  free to teach the custodians and also the

         16  superintendents to take care of pest management.

         17  And I was going to record it as a public access

         18  producer and provide it for free, so this way it

         19  could be given out to the residents and the parents

         20  of the children, and there is no takers.

         21                 You have everything in my package.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         23                 MR. MURAWSKI:  The letters to the

         24  Mayor, everybody else.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.
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          2  Great, And again, I am sorry we rushed this final

          3  panel, but this Health Committee Hearing is

          4  adjourned, and we are going to clear the way for

          5  Small Business.

          6                 (Hearing adjourned at 1:27 p.m.)

          7                 (The following testimony was read

          8  into the record)

          9

         10  Testimony of:

         11  Alice Yaker

         12  Executive Director

         13  SHARE

         14                 My name is Alice Yaker and I am

         15  Executive Director of SHARE, a New York City breast

         16  and ovarian cancer peer- led support organization

         17  that provides multilingual hotlines, support groups,

         18  wellness and education programs, and advocacy

         19  opportunities to tens of thousands of women and men

         20  each year.

         21                 On behalf of SHARE, I want to voice

         22  our support for the package of pesticide measures

         23  that are before the City Council today.

         24                 The issues in these measures are

         25  certainly relevant to identifying and implementing
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          2  ways to create a healthier environment for our

          3  citizens.  They are particularly relevant to the

          4  work we do at SHARE and it is for both these reasons

          5  that I testify today.

          6                 SHARE works with people who have been

          7  directly affected by breast or ovarian cancer.  In

          8  addition to providing support to those already

          9  affected, we are confronted with the challenge of

         10  working with researchers and medical providers to

         11  identify ways to reduce risk.  There is currently no

         12  cure for these diseases and no ways that we know of

         13  to prevent them.  But we are learning about risk

         14  reduction and actions that, we as individuals and

         15  society as a whole, can take to reduce risk, based

         16  on our current state of scientific knowledge.  Bill

         17  # 329, the NYC Pesticide Use Reduction Law, offers

         18  an opportunity to reduce the harmful carcinogenic

         19  effects of certain toxic pesticides by requiring

         20  City agencies and their contractors to switch to

         21  those that are non- toxic, or at least less toxic.

         22  Until such time that we can create a truly healthy

         23  environment, and find a cure for cancer, we can at

         24  the very least reduce the risks from those elements

         25  we know are unhealthy.
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          2                 SHARE's work is also focused on

          3  providing available and up- to- date information so

          4  people can make informed decisions and experience

          5  the power that comes from knowing the current state

          6  of information and acting accordingly.  If

          7  commercial lawn and tree care companies know that

          8  they are going to be spraying toxic pesticides, why

          9  shouldn't they be required to notify those who live

         10  or work in adjacent properties in advance of that

         11  spraying and enable the inhabitants to take

         12  appropriate measures to act on that information?

         13  The State has enacted this into law and opting in is

         14  the City's opportunity to empower its citizenry.

         15  We urge the City to opt into the Pesticide Neighbor

         16  Notification Law, Bill #328.

         17                 Finally, research on environmental

         18  issues is difficult and often inconclusive.  The

         19  State Bill creating a board to investigate the high

         20  rates of pesticide use in urban areas, and with

         21  those results, the impact on health of particular

         22  urban communities, would be most welcome and we

         23  encourage the City Council to pass Resolution #38.

         24                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         25  testify on issues that are critical to the health of
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          2  our community.

          3

          4  Testimony of:

          5  GreenPoint of New York

          6                 Honorable Members of the Health

          7  Committee:

          8                 Statements on Implementation of 48

          9  Neighbor Notification Law for the Five Boroughs of

         10  New York City.

         11                 1.  Integrated Pest Management (IPM)

         12  is being largely used in the control of plant pests

         13  in the metro area. 48- hour pre- notification

         14  greatly impedes the IPM approach to pest management,

         15  as applicators need to make on the spot judgments

         16  regarding chemical applications.

         17                 2.  Granular pesticides will be much

         18  more in use, as they are exempt from the law, and

         19  these applications are APT to lead to more

         20  groundwater contamination.

         21                 3.  Certain pesticides, which are not

         22  widely used now, will become more prevalent.  An

         23  example, is Di-Syston, a very toxic material, but

         24  because it is put down in granular form, is exempt

         25  from the notification law.
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          2                 4.  Registry -- Many states and

          3  municipalities have implemented a homeowner

          4  registry, so that people with concerns about

          5  neighbor's application can register to be notified.

          6  This greatly reduces the cost to the municipality

          7  and gives the information to those people who want

          8  it.

          9                 5.  Notification will cause prices of

         10  application to increase dramatically, thereby

         11  causing homeowners, who are exempt from the

         12  notification process, to try and address problems

         13  requiring the use of pesticides themselves,  even

         14  though they lack the expertise and training.  Very

         15  often homeowners do not follow label directions of

         16  pesticides, and apply at greater than suggested

         17  rates of application.

         18                 6.  There are no restrictions on

         19  homeowner usage of pesticides, or of notification by

         20  homeowner.  Homeowner application of certain

         21  pesticides, normally applied to lawns, is as much as

         22  80 percent of total annual usage.

         23                 7.  Implementation and enforcement

         24  will be costly. The New York Department of

         25  Environmental Conservation does not oversee this
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          2  program.  All costs will be borne locally.  This

          3  will not be a revenue- adding program, but rather a

          4  revenue- loss program for the City.

          5

          6  Testimony of:

          7  Louise Vetter

          8  Vice President of Advocacy

          9  American Lung Association of the City of New York

         10                 For more than 100 years, the Lung

         11  Association has worked to prevent lung disease and

         12  promote lung health among the residents of the five

         13  boroughs of New York City.  In that regard, on

         14  behalf of the organization, I am pleased to provide

         15  the following testimony in support of these bills,

         16  which, if enacted, would help address indoor air

         17  quality and therefore the respiratory health of New

         18  Yorkers, especially those living with lung disease.

         19                 In our City, approximately two

         20  million residents suffer each year from respiratory

         21  illnesses, like emphysema and chronic bronchitis.

         22  Of particular concern is asthma, which has reached

         23  epidemic proportions.  New York City has the highest

         24  asthma mortality rate in the nation.  Estimates

         25  indicate that one million residents in the five
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          2  boroughs have been diagnosed with asthma in their

          3  lifetime.  And currently, 300,000 children in New

          4  York City are struggling to manage this serious and

          5  debilitating lung disease.

          6                 Asthma is the leading cause of

          7  hospitalization for children fourteen years and

          8  younger, and children living in NYC are nearly three

          9  times more likely to be hospitalized for asthma than

         10  children in the rest of the United States.

         11  Furthermore, children who live in low- income

         12  neighborhoods are three times more likely to be

         13  hospitalized than those in higher income

         14  neighborhoods.  In some neighborhoods such as

         15  Harlem, nearly 25 percent of the children are living

         16  with this debilitating lung disease.

         17                 The fight against asthma rests in

         18  large part on the community's ability to reduce

         19  environmental triggers, outdoor and indoor, that can

         20  cause asthma exacerbations.  Indoor air pollution is

         21  of vital concern, since it is estimated that most

         22  people spend about 90 percent of their time indoors.

         23    Comparative risk studies performed by the EPA and

         24  its Science Advisory Board have consistently ranked

         25  indoor air pollution among the top four
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          2  environmental risks to the public.

          3                 Pesticides are a prime source of

          4  indoor air pollution in New York City, with more

          5  than 830,000 gallons of pesticides applied through

          6  commercial use each year.  It is important to

          7  remember that the"- cide" in pesticide means "to

          8  kill."  Pesticides are produced specifically because

          9  they are toxic to something.  Ideally their toxicity

         10  is selective, but while not usually affected in the

         11  same manner as insects or other "pests", human

         12  beings can experience their health effects.

         13                 Exposure to pesticides is known to

         14  cause headaches, respiratory and skin irritation,

         15  dizziness, muscle weakness, nausea, and in come

         16  cases of prolonged exposure, cancer.  Pyrethroids, a

         17  class of pesticides, trigger asthma attacks and

         18  allergic reactions, and are commonly used in New

         19  York City.

         20                 Nowhere is the use of pesticides more

         21  troublesome than in the school environment.

         22  Children are especially susceptible to air

         23  pollution, which can be drawn in from outdoors.

         24  Even when air- conditioning (HVAC) systems are

         25  working properly, pesticides from exterior
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          2  applications can invade the indoor environment and

          3  compound the impact of indoor pesticide

          4  applications.  With asthma as a main cause of school

          5  absenteeism, it is essential that we address asthma

          6  triggers in the school setting, where they are

          7  standing in the way of learning.

          8                 At the Lung Association, we are

          9  working hard to help our families and friends with

         10  asthma get the resources and answers they need to

         11  better manage their illness, but the leadership of

         12  the City is essential to protecting them from the

         13  environmental triggers of the disease.  By reducing

         14  pesticide use and improving the notification of

         15  pesticide application, Intros. 328 and 329 will help

         16  eliminate this toxic respiratory trigger and improve

         17  the lung health of New Yorkers.

         18                 As a result, the American Lung

         19  Association of the City of New York is pleased to

         20  offer its support for these bills, and we encourage

         21  the Council to act swiftly with their passage so

         22  that we all can breathe easier.

         23                 Thank you.

         24

         25  Testimony of:
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          2  Allison Farina

          3  Director of Government and Community Affairs

          4  New Yorkers for Parks

          5                 Good morning.  My name is Allison

          6  Farina and I am Director of Government and Community

          7  Affairs for New Yorkers for Parks (NY4P), the only

          8  City- wide organization advocating for the promotion

          9  and protection of parkland.  We support Intro. 329,

         10  a bill that reduces harmful pesticide use by all

         11  City agencies.

         12                 New York City's parks serve as

         13  backyards, playgrounds, gyms, environmental

         14  classrooms, and neighborhood gathering spaces,

         15  giving the City's residents a much- needed respite

         16  from the stresses of urban life and making their

         17  neighborhoods healthier and more enjoyable places to

         18  live, work, and play in.  Given the important role

         19  that parks play in our urban environment, it is

         20  critical that these spaces be as clean and safe as

         21  possible.

         22                 Each year, New Yorkers for Parks

         23  publishes an independent assessment of conditions

         24  found in New York City's Parks, known as The Report

         25  Card on Parks.  We do so because we believe that the
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          2  City should investigation the necessary funds to

          3  make our parks clean and enjoyable for all New

          4  Yorkers. Similarly, we support Intro. 329, because

          5  it requires City agencies, like the Parks

          6  Department, to begin using pesticides that have the

          7  least acute and toxic effects on our health.  New

          8  Yorkers have enough to worry about without having to

          9  worry about the safety of the grass in our

         10  greenspaces.

         11                 In addition, New Yorkers for Parks

         12  believes that good government practices, such as

         13  interagency collaboration, should be fostered

         14  whenever possible.  Therefore, another benefit of

         15  this legislation is that it calls for an increased

         16  collaborative effort among City agencies, to share

         17  information on, and reduce the use of, harmful

         18  pesticide.

         19                 NY4P calls on the Council to pass

         20  this legislation to ensure that our parks are safe

         21  places for play.

         22                 Thank you.

         23

         24  Testimony of:

         25  Bartlett Tree Experts
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          2                 Honorable Members of the Health

          3  Committee

          4                 1.  Integrated Pest Management (IPM)

          5  is a foundation of plant health care.  It is used by

          6  many companies to provide good technical service, as

          7  well as greatly reduce the amount of pesticide

          8  usage.  Neighbor Notification inhibits the practices

          9  of IPM, and actually leads to more frequent spray

         10  applications that cause harm to beneficial insect

         11  populations.

         12                 2.  Oversight of such a law will not

         13  be done by the State, but is overseen by the local

         14  health departments.  This does not bring funding to

         15  the City, but will cost the City money.

         16                 3.  It would be far better in an

         17  urban environment to establish a Pesticide Registry,

         18  where concerned citizens can put their name on a

         19  list for notification, rather than have all citizens

         20  notified.

         21                 4.  There are no controls on the

         22  homeowner for pesticide application.  The homeowner,

         23  who is neither licensed nor trained in the proper

         24  application of pesticides, does a large percentage

         25  of actual pesticide use.  Furthermore, the homeowner
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          2  usually misapplies chemical but using more than the

          3  labeled recommendations.

          4

          5  Testimony of:

          6  Ajamu Sankofa, Esq.

          7  Executive Director

          8  New York City Chapter of Physicians for Social

          9  Responsibility

         10                 The New York City Chapter of

         11  Physicians for Social Responsibility

         12  enthusiastically supports the three legislative

         13  measures that are before the Health Committee of the

         14  New York City Council.  They are:  Intro. 328,

         15  Intro. 329, and Res. 68. We encourage that these

         16  measures be passed as a comprehensive package.

         17                 Should they pass, they will represent

         18  a significant step forward in New York City's

         19  capacity to educate its residents of the serious

         20  health risks implicated in the use of pesticides, to

         21  promote the reduction in the use of the most toxic

         22  pesticides, and to encourage New York Statewide

         23  cooperation in monitoring the use of pesticides.

         24                 PSR/NYC is particularly encouraged

         25  because the two Bills and one Resolution, once
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          2  passed, will help to promote an atmosphere that

          3  supports conducting the best scientific research

          4  that can determine the clear links between exposure

          5  and disease. Such scientific data is essential in

          6  order for individuals and communities to protect

          7  themselves adequately from harmful exposure and to

          8  prevent disease.

          9                 We know that by design pesticides are

         10  toxic to living organisms.  Yet, we surround

         11  ourselves with mixtures of these chemicals with only

         12  a minimal understanding of them.

         13                 Each year, thousands of people in the

         14  U.S. Become ill or are hospitalized as a result of

         15  acute pesticide poisoning. We now are learning that

         16  even low levels of pesticide exposure encountered

         17  every day can lead to serious illness over time.

         18  Indeed, there is mounting evidence for a wide range

         19  of disturbing health effects; and it is clear that

         20  the developing fetus, infants, and young children

         21  are particularly sensitive to the harmful effects of

         22  pesticides.  Studies are confirming that low levels

         23  of pesticide exposure can cause cancer, damage the

         24  nervous system, reproductive system, and other

         25  organs; developmental and behavioral abnormalities;
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          2  disruption of normal hormonal function; and immune

          3  dysfunction.  Accordingly, this package of

          4  legislative measures is vitally needed.

          5                 We hope that these measures will

          6  prove to be only one in a series of steps that move

          7  us all to more rational, effective, and disease

          8  prevention uses of pest management procedures in New

          9  York City.  PSR/NYC applauds the Council's effort

         10  and it will lend the expertise of its offices to

         11  assist the Health Committee to promote further

         12  efforts.

         13

         14  Testimony of:

         15  Bill Murawski

         16  Policy Activist

         17  Grassroots Environmental Education

         18                 I appear to you today on behalf of

         19  the Grassroots Environmental Education, Steven

         20  Tvedten and myself.

         21                 The Grassroots Environmental

         22  Education group has graciously supplied ten copies

         23  of a DVD that was produced by it. On the DVD you

         24  will hear testimony from noted experts Philip J.

         25  Landrigan, MD of the Mount Sinai School of Medicine;
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          2  Elizabeth Guillette, Ph.D at the University of

          3  Florida; Fredrica Perera, Ph.D at Columbia

          4  University; John Wargo, Ph.D. At Yale University who

          5  point out the dangers and effects of the use of

          6  poisonous pesticides to the population at large.

          7                 I began my involvement with the issue

          8  of the use and misuse of poisonous pesticides during

          9  1999, when the City of New York began a mass

         10  spraying program to kill mosquitoes carrying the

         11  West Nile Virus (WNV), when I met Steven Tvedten who

         12  is the world's foremost expert regarding the use and

         13  misuse of pesticides and have worked closely with

         14  him since then.  Mr. Tvedten lives in Michigan and

         15  unfortunately cannot be here to testify today, so I

         16  have attached a copy of his resume listing some of

         17  his many accomplishments.

         18                 One of Mr. Tvedten's gifts to the

         19  world regarding the issue of the use and misuse of

         20  pesticides is an 86 page booklet titled the Bug

         21  Stops Here!, which can either be downloaded free

         22  from the internet or book marked as a favorite site.

         23    The booklet describes in detail the many safe and

         24  non toxic methods that can be used to manage a

         25  majority of household pests.  The booklet is located
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          2  at www.thebestcontrol.com.

          3                 Arrangements were made last year for

          4  Mr. Tvedten to visit representatives of the

          5  Department of Education of the City of New York and

          6  the New York City Housing Authority where he offered

          7  his services free to instruct the custodians of the

          8  public school system and the superintendents of the

          9  Housing Authority in the methods of safely

         10  controlling pests such as rats, mice, and roaches.

         11  As an awarded winning public access television

         12  producer, I volunteered my services to record such

         13  sessions on a DVD that would be distributed to

         14  parents of children attending the public school

         15  system and to residents of the Housing Authority.

         16  To date, only one written response was received by

         17  me from the New York City Housing Authority

         18  regarding the issue.  Attached to this testimony are

         19  letters from me to Mayor Michael Bloomberg,

         20  Chancellor Joel Klein and Chairman Tino Martinez in

         21  addition to the letter from the Housing Authority.

         22                 A copy of the Bug Stops Here and a

         23  three series of videotapes on the issue of the use

         24  and misuse of pesticides were presented to Mayor

         25  Michael Bloomberg last year, and still nothing.  One
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          2  note of interest I am compelled to pass along is

          3  that while working with a custodian at a local

          4  school regarding a severe rodent problem, the

          5  principal banned me from the school in spite of the

          6  fact that I told her we met with the Department of

          7  Education regarding the issue.  She stated that "I

          8  do not care who you met with, this is my school and

          9  I do not want you inside the building."  The school

         10  is PS 111 that is located at 53rd Street and 10th

         11  Avenue.

         12                 And now we have today's hearing, by

         13  the City Council regarding Intro. 328 that is the

         14  Pesticide Neighbor Notification Law, which I

         15  wholeheartedly support in today's legislative

         16  environment.  However, I cannot fully support Intro.

         17  No. 329, which is the New York City Pesticide Use

         18  Reduction Law because it does not go far enough.  I

         19  urge the City Council to include in Intro. 329 words

         20  that ban all toxic pesticides in all areas of New

         21  York City.  If that were done, I would fully support

         22  the legislation.  And if Intro. 329 were strong

         23  enough as suggested, Intro. 328 would not be

         24  required.

         25                 Clearly, the mass spraying of
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          2  poisonous pesticides did not stop the problem of the

          3  spread of the West Nile virus, because it has

          4  reached the entire nation and the asthma rates is at

          5  the highest of any area in the nation.  The time has

          6  come for New York City to be the leader in the issue

          7  of banning pesticides to protect our children and

          8  our future environment.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 1:17 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )
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          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not
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